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Financial Surmmary
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RESULTS E

i

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2012 2011 2008
(restated)

—E-C_F
+=ZA=t+—H A=+—H
(&51)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET TET FET

Revenue 14,647 16,357 17,777 16,667

Profit before tax BR 4 Al 7l 6,074 3,163 4,645 3,645
Income tax expense TR Y (1,127) (636) (420) (29)
Profit attributable ARARHEA

to owners of FE & F

the Company 4,947 2,627 4,225 3,616
Profit attributable to RRARHEA

owners of the Company & {5 )% 7

(excluding extra-ordinary (R E3E3E

items) LEMIEE) 4,947 2,627 4,225 3,616
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at
31 December
2012

—E-C_F

t=A=t-A

HK$’000
TET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER & &

Total assets BEBE
Total liabilities BfEHRE
Net assets FEE

PER SHARE DATA

As at
31 December
2012

—E—C_F

t=A=t-H

HK Cents
Al

BRAM

Earnings per share

(excluding extra-ordinary (T B #E3E
items) IR )
Net book value per share IR RS E

Financial Surmmary (continued]

M mE (E)

EERER

As at

31 December
2011

(restated)
—F—F
+-A=+—"H
(E%))
HK$'000

TET

As at
31 December

As at
31 December

As at
31 December

HK$'000

THBT

HK$'000

T8

HK$'000

TET

158,482 147,824 144,774 141,871

(19,470) (18,110) (18,199) (19,518)

139,012 129,714 126,575 122,353
BEREF

As at
31 December
2008

As at
31 December
2009

As at
31 December
2010

As at

31 December
2011

(restated)
—E——F
+ZR=+—H
(E51)

HK Cents HK Cents

AL AL
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+=ZRA=+—H
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Financial Summary (continued])

FmE (E)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EARNINGS PER SHARE
OWNERS OF THECOM PANY
AR EAESGGR BRER
(excluding extra-ordinary items) (excluding extra-ordinary items)
(TERIEFEFEER) (FBEFERE®ER)
HK$'000 F#7T HK Cents i#1ll
5,000 1.5
4,000
1.0
3,000
2,000
1,000 I
0
Asat 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2010 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 As at 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2010 31/12/2011 31/12/2012
Bz (restated) (restated)
(&51) (&51)

NET BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
ZRIREFE

HK Cents 71l
30

20
15
10

0

Asat 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2010 31/12/2011 31/12/2012
HE

(o))

(restated)
(&51)
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company together with our
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2012 (“2012” or the “current year” or “Reporting year” or the “year
under review”) to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Business Review

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s consolidated revenue for
the current year increased 2.5% to approximately HK$15.02 million (2011:
approximately HK$14.65 million). Net profit attributable to shareholders was
approximately HK$1.55 million (2011: HK$4.95 million (restated)). Basic
earnings per share were approximately 0.29 HK cent for the year ended 31
December 2012. Total assets less current liabilities decreased by
approximately 3%, a net decrease by approximately HK$4.6 milion to
approximately HK$147.07 milion as compared with HK$151.67 million
(restated) as at 31 December 2011.

Dividends

The Company did not propose any dividends for the year ended 31
December 2012. The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Prospects

Facing the global economic uncertainty, we expected the business
environment would continue to be difficult and complicated. As always, the
Group will adopt prudent strategies for the existing business sectors.

To cope with these challenges, the Group remained focus to carry out various
initiatives to control operating costs and streamline the existing operation so
as to enhance operation efficiency. The Group also constantly reviews and
extends its risk management measures and financial management capabilities
to ensure that they cover the full extent of its operations.

At the same time, the Group will keep an open mind on new business
opportunities that fit well with its risk averse policy. Management will also look

out for structural changes that may have an impact on the Group or the

industry as a whole in order to maximize every Shareholder’s interest.

Chairman's Statement
FE s
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE (B
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| would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to all 7R A2t B R IR E A ENERER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

Negatively impacted by an increase in annual distribution to Railway
Department of HK$0.78 million together with the impairment loss on other
receivables of approximately HK$3.20 million as well as the termination of the
management contract over the operation right of Group’s Hotel on 9 October
2012, the Group no longer enjoys the income from granting the management
right of the Group’s Hotel, the profit attributable to owners of the Group
approximately HK$1.55 million (2011: HK$4.95 million (restated)),
representing a reduction of 68.69%. On the other hand, net cash balance
increased by 7.21% to HK$46.41 million (2011: HK$43.29 million).

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted
to approximately HK$15.02 million, representing an increase by approximately
2.52% as compared to approximately HK$14.65 million in the previous year.
The increase is mainly due to the appreciation of Renminbi during the year
under review.

During the year under review, the Group had to account for gain arising on
change in fair value of investment properties aggregate of 6.25 million (2011:
3.93 million).

Given our strong balance sheet and cash generation ability, our financial
position continues to be strong. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the
gearing ratio (divided non-current liabilities by equity plus non-current liabilities
multiple by 100 which results in percentage) of the Group was 4.15% (2011:
8.35% (restated)).

Operational Review

A. Star-rated hotel operation

Star-rated hotel operation is the main source of revenue for the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, turnover of the hotel was
approximately HK$13.68 million (2011: HK$13.24 million), representing
an increase of approximately 3.32% from the corresponding financial
year.

For the year under review, the occupancy rate was approximately
43.9% (2011: 45.6%) representing a decrease of 3.73% over the
previous year. Average daily rate (ADR) was approximately RMB238

BB R am B AT

E 3 JE)

EERFARREEBEMNOBE158TT(=
T——F 458 L (EY))  BREFHEDE
HN T 268.69% ° NEETEHNEFHE T
HEBsHBELEATSE LR TR HE M EIR
R BEBEERNRETEN - ——F
+ANBRIEBAEEBEEEERTERE
REZEBRARUABAEBRZ MAREMmEX -
SHH AEBFRSEBRBEERT21I% 21E
REZEE4641 BT (ZF——F 14,3298 7T) °

HEZE——F+-_A=+—HLFEAN"
AN E A EREIE,5028 8 o 0 B X F 491,465
EBTZETLER S EFHH252% it TA B
REEHRRIAREA B -

REBEHA  NEEES6258 (2T ——F:
BBE)ZREMERAFENES -

B D A R A EAOR R B S 1 A 1\
hARAMBHEHRRGEBR - HE-S mﬁﬂ\
—ZF+ZA=t+-BL AREEAEE
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BEZEML) R416%(ZF——5 :8.35% (&
5)) °

ZE OB

(2011: RMB233) representing an increase of 2.15% over the previous

year.



Management Discussion and Analysis [continued)]

EIRE S el o AT (B8)

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement dated 4 March 2008 (the
“Management Contract”) entered into by and between Xiamen South
East Asia Company Limited (“Xiamen Plaza”), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and [EFIZEEE/E SR HIRA R
(“Xiamen Friendship International Co., Ltd”) (“Friendship International”),
Friendship International was granted the operation right of the hotel for
a term of five years starting from 4 March 2008. Under the Management
Contract, the annual net income generated to the Group is guaranteed
at RMB6.66 million plus 1% of the annual turnover of the hotel (the
“Guaranteed Income Level”). Where the audited net income of the hotel
on adding back amortization and depreciation expenses for a year is
less than the Guaranteed Income Level for the same year as at 31
December, Friendship International is required to pay the shortfall to
Xiamen Plaza after a consensus is reached between Friendship
International and Xiamen Plaza.

The Management Contract was subsequently terminated on 9 October
2012 due to default in payment by Friendship International, and the
hotel has been operated by the Group since 10 October 2012. As
such, the Group no longer enjoys the Guaranteed Income Level and
any profit or loss generated from the operation of the Hotel has to be
borne by the Group. The Group had received approximately RMB3.50
million from Friendship International for the operation of the hotel for the
year ending 31 December 2012 before the termination of the
Management Contract.

The following table sets out the amount and percentage of contributions
from different businesses of the star- rated hotel operation for the year
ended 31 December 2012, together with comparative figures of 2011:

31 December 2012
—E-——f£+=-A=+—H
HKS in

thousand

FET

Accommodation revenue & & $5 & Uk A
Rental revenue o U A
Other EH
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

Accommodation revenue

The accommodation revenue was mainly determined by the number of
available rooms, occupancy rate and ADR of the Group’s hotels. During
the reporting year, the accommodation revenue of star-rated hotels
was approximately HK$11.39 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 1.49% over 2011 or a reduction of 5.30% when the
appreciation of Renminbi was excluded. It was mainly because the
accommodation revenue loss stemming from competition among star-
rated hotels further intensified, there is a situation of oversupply in the
industry and the interior facility is functional obsolescence. This directly
affected the accommodation revenue of star-rated hotels.

Rental revenue

In order to stabilize the income of the hotel operation, the hotel operator
let out the shopping centre in the Group’s hotel. This contributed to
approximately HK$2.29 million in rental revenue during the year under
review, representing an increase of approximately 38% over 2011.

Increasing costs arising from the operating environment especially from
increasing wages and inflation remains the key challenge for the hotel
industry. To overcome these adversities, the Group will continue to
implement tight cost control measures and seek further improvement in
operational efficiency to minimize the adverse impacts.

Hong Kong properties held by the Group

The occupancy rate for the properties of the Group in Hong Kong is
nearly full during the year under review. It brought a steady rental
income to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the rental income of properties
in Hong Kong was approximately HK$1.34 million, while the rental
income was approximately HK$1.41 million in year 2011. The decrease
was mainly resulted from the disposal of property during the year under
review.

With the support of the strong local economy and most of existing
tenancy contracts of the Group’s properties will only expire after 2012;
therefore, the impact on the rental income in 2013 is expected to be
insignificant.

EIRE

m B M ()

ERHEEWRA

EEEAKRAFTERARAEEEE
WAEHEERERE  AFXREHBXRE
B-RfEHAN ELBELERHBA
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HAEBA
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Management Discussion and Analysis [continued)]

B E AT BT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company disposed the
property located at Shops No. 65 on Ground Floor, Shaukiwan Centre,
No. 407 Shau Kei Wan Road, Hong Kong. Pursuant to the sales and
purchase agreement, the Company agreed to sell, and the purchaser
agreed to purchase, the above-mentioned property for a cash
consideration of HK$4.38 million. The disposal was completed in the
financial year under review.

C. Piano manufacturing

The Group diversified its business into the piano manufacturing sector
by acquiring a 25% equity interest of Fuzhou Harmony Piano Co. Ltd.
(*Harmony Piano”) in 2005. This business interest brought a steady
profit to the Group for the year under review.

Future Development

Recently, there was sign of improvement in China’s economy. However,
sustainability of such rebound in future was questioned. The Group remains
prudent in planning its future strategies as global economic climate clouded
with various uncertainties.

Exploring opportunities remain the strategies of the Group, although we wiill
monitor the situation cautiously and adjust our development plan accordingly
under the existing unfavorable conditions.

Financial Review

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2012, the total issued share capital of the Company was
HK$66,780,000 divided into 534,240,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.125 each.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a net cash balance of approximately
HK$46.41 million (2011: HK$43.29 million). The Group’s net asset value (assets
less liabilities) was approximately HK$140.97 million (2011: HK$139.01 million
(restated)), with a liquidity ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) of 7.25
(2011: 7.69). This high level of liquidity and available funding will enable the
Group to meet its expected future working capital requirements and to take
advantage of growth opportunities for the business. During the year, there
was no material change in the Group’s funding and treasury policy. The
Directors do not expect the Company to experience any problem with liquidity
and financial resources in foreseeable future.
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BHE-_T——F+-RA=+—HLHFE
W ARAIHEMNRES S HEBE407
I ‘Uﬁﬁ?/\‘f’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ"*ﬁﬁﬁ
BEH ARAEBEFDARELE R
BE Ltz BeREARIBBEE T -
HEERAREERNTTAA -

C. HERE

AEBER_ZTTAFEBTHRKRBEN
B0 REMBEREBEZMSRE
X-REERAN WEXBESSAEH
wRIBELZEF o

RIRERE

H G PEEEERERR - AT ZRER
ARZFEBRNKEE - ARBRREBRED
WREZTARRAEMES WAKEE SHE
FEEERRBERRAE

%iﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgzﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ
MRRE AEBEHBERERER  HEH

%%E%%°

Bt % [0 B8

BEARZEE
R—ZFE—=—F+-_A=Z=+—H ARalz
O B 17 B% 7K 4 %8 /566,780,000 T D A
534,240,000 % & B% 1 {E0.125 4 7T 2 & @AY °
RBEERBER
HE-_Z——-—F+-_A=+—H1 A5%H

CHESHEHFENBIMBET( T ——
F 43208 B L) AEBMZEEFE(E

ERBE)HDAB1407EBT(ZT——F:
13,901 BT (EF)) Bt & (i &) & /= 6l
RBBEZLER)AE7T25(ZF——F :7.69) °
ZeaKFzRHERAIBAES S AEET
ERAREEESCREBERBETNT R -
%$¢W*$El2§$&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ§
EERA ARBEAEILHREL
Kgﬁi&ﬁéﬁm@ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁim%

o



Management Discussion and Analysis [continued]

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has not charged any of its assets.

Exposure to fluctuation in exchange rate and related
hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Operating outgoings
incurred by the Group’s subsidiary in the mainland China are mainly
denominated in RMB as well as its revenue. The management is of the
opinion that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange rate risks is not
significant and hedging through the use of derivative instruments is
considered unnecessary. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates of
Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi may have an impact on the operating results
of the Group.

The funding and treasury policies of existing subsidiaries of the Group are
centrally managed and controlled by the Group’s senior management in Hong
Kong.

Disposal and Acquisitions

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company disposed the property
located at Shops No. 65 on Ground Floor, Shaukiwan Centre, No. 407 Shau
Kei Wan Road, Hong Kong. Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement,
the Company agreed to sell, and the purchaser agreed to purchase, the
above-mentioned property for a cash consideration of HK$4.38 million. The
disposal was completed in the financial year under review.

Contingent Liability

The Group did not have any significant contingent liability during the year.

Major Events

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material capital commitments
and no future plans for material investments or capital assets.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 96 employees in
Hong Kong and Xiamen. The remuneration package was determined with
reference to performance and the prevailing market rate. The Group also
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provides employees with training, the opportunity to join its mandatory

provident fund scheme and medical insurance cover.



Directors’ Biography
EEEE

Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Xiaowu, aged 55, is the Chairman of the Group, a director and
Vice Chairman of HC Technology Capital Company Limited and Vice General
Manager of Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in December
2003 and is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Wang has over 30 years’ senior management experience including
Assistant President and General Manager in the Treasury Department and
International Finance Department in Fujian International Trust and Investment
Corporation prior to joining the Group.

Mr. Wang acquired his Bachelor Degree in Electrical and Mechanical
Engineering from Tsinghua University in the PRC and Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Glasgow in the UK.

Mr. WANG Ruilian, aged 49, is the General Manager of the Group. Mr. Wang
joined the Group in July 2006 and is responsible for the daily operations and
execution of the strategies developed by the Board. Mr. Wang has over 20
years’ experience in management and finance. Mr. Wang has previously been
sent to overseas companies to take up a number of senior management
posts, including a director and vice general manager of the Finance
Department of Fujian Investment and Development Company Limited, and
the managing director of Fujian Enterprises (Hungary) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wang acquired his Bachelor Degree in Economics from Xiamen University
in the PRC and Master Degree of International Management from Australian
National University in Australia.

Mr. LIU Xiaoting, aged 47, is the Vice General Manager of the Group. Mr.
Liu joined the Group in November 2004 and assists the General Manager for
the daily operations. Mr. Liu has over 20 years’ experience in finance
management. Mr. Liu has taken up a number of management posts, included
the related Department of Fujian Provincial People’s Government; Director of
Fujian Hua Min Import & Export Co., Ltd.; Assistant General Manager and the
in charge of Finance Department of Fujian Industrial Company Limited;
Financial Controller of trading firm in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Biography [continued)]

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. FENG Qiang, aged 47, is the General Manager of Investment and
Planning Department of Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited.
Mr. Feng joined the Group in January 2005. He spent years of research in the
Chinese Academy of Social Science at Fujian for corporate strategies and
reforms. He also has practical experience in corporate investment planning,
operational management and corporate restructuring during his service in the
government of Fujian Province and its related companies. Mr. Feng has over
27 years’ corporation and investment management experience.

Mr. Feng has a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics.

Mr. YE Tao, aged 41, is the Deputy Managing Director of Sino Earn Holdings
Limited. Mr. Ye joined the Group in September 2004. Mr. Ye has over 10
years’ management experience. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Ye graduated
from Fuzhou University with a Bachelor Degree in Economics and acquired
his Master Degree in Finance from Xiamen University.
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Directors’ Biography [continued]
EEZME (&)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Kwong Siu, S.B.S, aged 78, was the Delegate of the National
People’s Congress (10th Session), he is currently the Vice Chairman of BOC
International Holdings Limited, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Association, the Honorary President of Supervision of
Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of Commerce, the Vice Chairman of Fujian-
Hong Kong Economic Cooperation, the Life Honorary Chairman of the
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and the Consultant of the Hong
Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, the Honorary President of Chinese
Bankers Club, Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is also the Independent Non-executive
Director of Bank of China International Limited, CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited (was withdrawn of its listing on 5 November 2008), Citic
Bank International Limited (formerly known as Citic Ka Wah Bank Limited),
China Overseas Land & Investment Limited, Yuzhou Properties Company
Limited, Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and Far East Consortium International
Limited. Mr. Lam was awarded the HKSAR Silver Bauhinia Star in 2003.

Mr. CHEUNG Wah Fung Christopher, up , aged 60, joined the Group in
December 2003. He is the Chairman of Christfund Securities Limited,
Christfund Futures Limited, Christfund Finance Limited and Christfund
Corporate Finance Limited, a Nonexecutive Director of Tongda Group
Holdings Limited. He serves as a Member of Legislative Council (Functional
Constituency — Financial Service), a Member of the People’s Political
Consultative Conference of PRC, the Honorary President of Hong Kong
Securities Association Limited, chairman of the Council Member of the
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, Deputy Secretary of the Friends of
Hong Kong Association, a Council Member (1997-2000) of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and a Director (1998-2000) of the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited, Committee Member of the Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce, the Honorary President of Hong Kong Federation of
Fujian Association and Member of the Standing Committee of the Federation
of Commerce and Industry of Guangdong Province and Mr. Cheung acquired
his Master Degree in MBA from City University of Hong Kong and was
appointed as Justice of Peace by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
Government in 2000.

Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim, FCPA (Aust.), CPA (Macau), FCPA (Practising), aged 77,
joined the Group in September 2004. He is the founder and Senior Partner of
PKF. Mr. Leung, is a Non-executive Director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange
of Personnel Centre Limited, an Independent Non-executive Director of a
number of listed companies namely Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd., YGM
Trading Ltd., S E A Holdings Ltd., High Fashion International Ltd. and Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Ltd..
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the consolidated
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are hotel business and property
investment and those of its subsidiaries are disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by principal
activities and geographical area of operation for the year ended 31 December
2012 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results and cash flow of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the financial statements on pages 46
to 130.

DIVIDENDS

The Company did not propose any dividends for the year ended 31
December 2012. The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the statement of net assets/liabilities of the
Group for the last financial years is set out on pages 4 to 6.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
the Group’s largest customer accounted for 22.3% and 7.5% (2011: 22%
and 8.7%) respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEWmE (E

None of the Directors, their associates, or shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers during the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out on page 48 and in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

Details of the movements in prepaid lease payment of the Group are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 December 2012, the investment properties of the Group were revalued
by an independent firm of professional surveyor and property valuer on an
open market value basis at HK$32.65 million. Details of these and other
movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group are set
out in pages 131 to 132 and note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates for the year ended
31 December 2012 are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Directors’ Report ([continued]

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOAN AND OTHER

There were no outstanding bank loan and other borrowings by the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2012.

CAPITALISED BORROWING COSTS

No borrowing costs were being capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: Nil).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors of the Company (including our Independent
Executive Directors) believe that the related party transactions set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements are carried out in the ordinary
course of business and on normal commercial terms.

For the purpose of the related party transactions set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Board of the Company confirms that,
none of them constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEWRE (8

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2012 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. WANG Xiaowu (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Ruilian
Mr. LIU Xiaoting

Non-executive directors:

Mr. FENG Qiang
Mr. YE Tao

Independent Non-executive directors:

Mr. LAM Kwong Siu
Mr. CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher
Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim (re-appointed on 24 September 2012)

In accordance with article 101 of the Company’s Articles of Association, one
third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to one third shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for
re-election.

Pursuant to Article 101 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Messrs.
Wang Ruilian, Liu Xiaoting, Leung Hok Lim and Ye Tao shall retire by rotation
in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and all, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Report [continued]

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting have a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHY

Biography of the Company’s directors is set out on pages 14 to 16.

Directors’ Emoluments and the Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid individuals
in the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements,
respectively.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares, and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”)), which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were
as follows:
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Directors’ Report (continued]
EEWRE (8

Long position in shares and underlying shares of
the Company

Director Type of interests
= ERER
Wang Xiaowu Personal
R A
Note:

These interests represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of share options
granted by the Company to Mr. Wang Xiaowu as beneficial owners, the details of which
are set out in the Section “Share Options” below.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, none of the directors of the
Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (i) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries engaged in
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the directors of the Company nor their respective
associates had any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with any business of the Group.
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Directors’ Report ([continued]

INTERESTS IN ASSETS OF THE GROUP

During the year, none of the directors of the Company had any direct or
indirect interests in any assets which have been acquired or disposed of, or
leased to, or which are proposed to be acquired or disposed of or leased to,
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company was materially interested in any
contract or arrangement subsisting during or at the end of the year which is
significant in relation to the business of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, as far as is known to the directors of the Company
and the Company, and as confirmed upon reasonable enquiry, the register
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO shows that the
following persons (not being directors and employees of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the
Company or the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Company or had an option in respect of such capital were as follows:
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Directors’ Report (continued]
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Long positions in the shares of the Company

Name of Shareholders

R A

HC Technology Capital Company Limited (“HC Technology”)
ERRFREEER AR ([ERBED

Fujian Investment and Development Company Limited (“FIDC”)
ERKREZRARAA ([ERFRE]

Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited (“FHIG”)
RRERNEX (GE)ERAR(RBEEREX(KE)D

Sino Earn Holdings Limited (“Sino Earn”)

EZR (BB ERARAR(TER)

Fujian Huaxing Trust & Investment Company (“‘FHTI”)
RBEZHGEREQRA(EHEFTED

Fujian Huaxing Industrial Company (“FHIC”)
REEREZEQNR(ERTXE])

Notes:

(@)

24

HC Technology beneficially holds 279,241,379 shares in the Company. Pursuant
to the SFO, FHIG is deemed to be interested in the 279,241,379 shares by virtue
of its being beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of FIDC
and FIDC is deemed to be beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share
capital of HC Technology. FHIG is a state-owned corporation of the PRC.

Sino Earn beneficially holds 72,553,382 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
SFO, each of FHTI and FHIC is deemed to be interested in the 72,553,382
shares by virtue of their being beneficially interested in 30% and 70% of the
issued share capital of Sino Earn respectively. Both FHTI and FHIC are state-
owned corporations of the PRC.

| Fujian Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2012

AR BZEFR
Number of % of total
shares of the issued shares
Company held of the Company
e NG HERITERAT
RHEEE ROBEES L
279,241,379 (a) 52.3
279,241,379 (a) 52.3
279,241,379 (a) 52.3
72,553,382 (b) 13.6
72,553,382 (b) 13.6
72,553,382 (b) 13.6

g -

(@

(b)

E AT FEA279,241,379 A 2~ 7 %
MoREBHFRHAEKRI SR EEEREE
(FE)EREAERBED FITRAZ100%
Rk EHR R ERRAESBREEEITR
N2 100% 1 &=+ [F UL w5 AR A B 279,241,379
BN EZ EREHEE(EE)ATRZ
BARE-

EEZEFEHAT2,5533820 AR ARG - RIE
BHERPEGH EREREITREARETE
AREREEEED BITHR A Z30%KX70%
B S BWR AR E725533821 %
Em EEHERAREATENATRZER
hE-



Directors’ Report [continued]

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2012, the directors of the
Company and the Company, as confirmed upon reasonable enquiry made by
them and as indicated in the register maintained by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, were not aware of any other persons (other than
directors and employees of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares (including any
interests in options in respect of such capital), which are required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who owned any interests or short
positions to be recorded in the register under Section 336 of the SFO; or who
was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Company or had any option in
respect of such capital.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Apart from the Management Contract, as explained in P.10, which has been
terminated on 9 October 2012, there was no contracts countering the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in China are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries, had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2012.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as of the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company for the
subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng was reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Save
for the above, there has been no other change in the auditors of the Company
in any of the preceding three years.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
directors of the Company subsequent to the latest publication of the
Company are set out below:

Name of director Details of changes

WANG Xiaowu With effect from 1 May 2012, Director’s emolument
increased to HK$60,000 per month

WANG Ruilian With effect from 1 May 2012, Director’s emolument
increased to HK$50,000 per month

LIU Xiaoting With effect from 1 May 2012, Director’s emolument

increased to HK$45,000 per month

On behalf of the Board

Wang Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognized standards of corporate governance
principles and practices has always been one of the top priorities of the
Company. The Board of Directors (“the Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is one of the areas that lead to the success of the Company and
in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the
Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness
of such principles and practices.

Save as disclosed below, the Company has fully complied throughout the
year 2012 with the applicable code provisions in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) (effective from 1 April 2012) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Code provision A.6.7 of the New CG Code requires that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. LAM Kwong Siu and CHEUNG Wah Fung, independent non-executive
directors and Mr. FENG Qiang and Mr. YE Tao, non-executive directors, did
not attend annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 April 2012 due
to their engagement in their own official business.

Code provision A.6.7 of the New CG Code also requires that non-executive
directors should give the board on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance. Mr. YE Tao, non-executive Directors did not attend the board
meetings during the year due to his engagement in his own official business.

Code provision E.1.2 of the New CG Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. WANG Xiaowu, the
chairman of the board, did not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 April 2012 due to his engagement in his own official
business.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
met all code provisions as set out in the Former CG Code and the New CG
Code during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERRSE (B)

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Board is principally responsible for the management and operations of
the Group. The Board also reviews the overall strategic development and
monitors the financial performance of the Group. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities in reviewing the reports of the Group for the year covered
by this annual report.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, three of which are Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Board composition review will be made regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and expertise appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Group. In accordance with article 101 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, one third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-
third shall retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and shall be
eligible for re-election.

CHAIRMAN’S ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY

The Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and the Group General Manager are
separate individuals, to maintain segregation of duties between the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. One important role of the Chairman is to provide leadership for the
Board. The Chairman has to ensure that the Board works effectively,
discharges responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. All Directors are consulted about
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated to
the Company Secretary the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each
Board meeting.

The Group supports the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Group General Manager has been delegated
such authority. The Board always acts in the best interests of the Group, and
all Directors have made full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board.
Meeting between the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without the presence of Executive
Directors has been scheduled as at least once a year.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued)

A package of orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities
of Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong is provided to each newly appointed
Director. Orientation meeting for briefing on business and operations of the
Group will be held with the Directors concerned.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets regularly. For the year ended 31 December 2012, it held
four meetings. Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance.
All notices of the meeting of the Board will be made to various directors at
least 14 days prior to the meeting, the Company Secretary will assist the
Chairman in preparing the memorandum of the meeting as to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. Board papers are circulated not less than
three days before the Board meetings, to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings and to offer
them sufficient time to review the documents. The Company Secretary and
the Qualified Accountant normally attend all regular Board meetings, to advise
on corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting and financial
matters when necessary, as to ensure the compliance and maintenance of
sound corporate governance practice. The Company Secretary shall prepare
minutes and keep record of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all
Board meetings.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) among members of the Board. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgment. The Company has received annual
written confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their independence during the year pursuant to the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

rEER®RE (E

The Board members meet regularly, normally four times each year at
approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operational and financial performance of the Company. Other Board meetings
will be held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. During the year ended 31

December 2012, four regular Board meetings and a meeting with non-
executive directors were held and the attendance records of individual
Directors are set out below:

Director

Chairman EY

WANG Xiaowu TR
Executive Directors HITEE
WANG Ruilian T ¥ ok

LIU Xiaoting 21T
Non-executive Directors FEHITESR
FENG Qiang ik

YE Tao BE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFNITESE
LAM Kwong Siu EIK
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher R EE &
LEUNG Hok Lim R 2R

A meeting with non-executive directors was held in 2012 in which non-
executive directors reviewed the budgets and future development of the
Group. No executive directors took part in any discussion of the above.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for attending regular
and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas and other relevant information
are normally provided to the Directors in advance of Board meetings. All
Directors are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for Board
meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules
and regulations, are followed.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]

Draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.

Insurance policy has been arranged to safeguard the interests of the Directors
in case of legal proceedings.

Independent non-executive directors and non-executive
directors

Mr. Leung Hok Lim has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 24 September 2004 and was reappointed for the forth times
with tenure of two years and expiring on 23 September 2014. Mr. Lam
Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung have been Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company were reappointed at most four times with
tenure of two years and expiring on 10 December 2013. However, their
tenure is subject to retirement by rotation at the Annual General Meeting in
compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the Code on
Corporate Governance, under which they have to retire by rotation and make
themselves eligible for re-election.

Mr. Ye Tao and Mr. Feng Qiang were appointed as Non-executive Directors
on 24 September 2004 and 27 January 2005 respectively and without a
specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting in compliance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERRSE (B)

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The board of directors recognizes the importance of integrity of financial
information and acknowledges its responsibility for preparing interim and
annual financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group’s affairs
and its results and cash flows in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
presenting the financial information, as well as price-sensitive announcements
and other financial disclosures as required by regulations, the board
endeavors to present in a timely manner to shareholders and other
stakeholders a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects. Accordingly, appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently, and judgments and estimates
made by the management for financial reporting purpose are prudent and
reasonable. The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards. Prior to the adoption of
the financial statements and the related accounting policies, the relevant
financial information is discussed between the external auditor and the
management, and then submitted to the audit committee for review.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
control and reviewing its effectiveness. The internal control system is
designed to facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records and the truth and fairness of the financial
statements, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.
It provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and management rather than elimination of risks
associated with its business activities.

During the year, the audit committee, as delegated by the board, has

reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]
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Professional Development BXER

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company AWM EZEEVHEEZLEE A2 QEZE

recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and refresh SHHEMHBEZ EASUBRELREHEEZE M
their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in continuous &Gt 2B ES AL FEHEELRE
professional development programs, to develop and refresh their knowledge 5t gIJ N A BB B E AT TR B 2 IR B
and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training # & R EHESS G BEELRTHE
received by the respective directors are kept and updated by the company Z 7 H#HB LKt - KEEME T 215|328

secretary of the Company. BARR R MERELEH
The individual training record of each director received for the year ended 31 HE-_ET——F+-_A=+—HIFEF &
December 2012 is summarized below: = Fﬁ Tﬁ ZEE z @RI Rk an R ¢

Reading materials and
Attending seminar(s)/ update relating to the latest

program(s)/conference(s) development of Listing
relevant to the business or related regulatory
directors’ duties requirements
LEFRXFESHE: MHEFHELTRAREGER
BE#E  wrE, gBZER EEREZMBREN
WANG Xiaowu ENR x i
WANG Ruilian ES: Foq v 7
LIU Xiaoting 20/ T v v
FENG Qiang 5 58 x v |
YE Tao o3 x 4 A0
LAM Kwong Siu & K v v '
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher REEIR 4 v
LEUNG Hok Lim R 2R v v

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional & ﬁg EFEHTHIBEZERERZERZE
development and are committed to participating any suitable training to 7 22 B E (Al & i@ 2 55 5l - LA BE R 5 '
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. I X&) '
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has appointed a number of committees to discharge the board
functions. Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board committees
to undertake their specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and
activities of each board committee are set out below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Group was established in 1999. Currently, it
comprises three members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim who possesses professional accounting
qualification, Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher.
Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee adopted the term of reference in accordance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices issued by the Stock Exchange. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. Two meetings have
been held by the Audit Committee during the year. Each Committee meeting
was provided with necessary financial information of the Group for
consideration, review and assessment of major issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the members of the Audit
Committee met twice and their attendance is as follows:

Name of member RE A
LEUNG Hok Lim (Chairman) REBE(FE)
LAM Kwong Siu MR JK
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher REEIE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim and final financial results for
the year 2012. The Audit Committee considers the financial statement to be
complied with the appropriate financial standards and the law regulations and
with enough disclosure has been made.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending candidates to fill
vacancies in the Board based on their qualifications, abilities and potential
contribution to our Company and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment, re-election and removal of directors to the Board. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on our
Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee was formed by the Group in March 2005. The
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors namely Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher, Mr.
Leung Hok Lim and Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, whereas Mr. Cheung Wah Fung,
Christopher was nominated as the Chairman of the committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the members of the Nomination
Committee met once and resolved to propose the reappointment of our one
Independent Non-executive Directors for a term of two year from 24
September 2010 to 23 September 2012 and submitted the same to the
Board for approval. Their attendance is as follows:

Name of member RE BB
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher (Chairman) REE(E/E)
LEUNG Hok Lim RER

LAM Kwong Siu MREE K
WANG Ruilian T T ok

LIU Xiaoting 21T

No executive director took part in any discussion of the above.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Group established its Remuneration Committee in March 2005. The
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, Mr. Leung Hok Lim
and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher. Mr. Lam Kwong Siu is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee adopted the
term of reference in accordance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices issued by the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee met
while required as to review the emolument policy and the benefits of the
Executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include consulting
the chairman of the Board about their remuneration proposals for other
executive directors, making recommendation to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
and the Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under B.1.2(c)(i)
of the code provisions to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the members of the Remuneration
Committee met once and their attendance is as follows:

Name of member REEZRE
LAM Kwong Siu (Chairman) WREIK (£ E)
LEUNG Hok Lim 22
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher GREE L
WANG Xiaowu ENE

WANG Ruilian F 3 bR

LIU Xiaoting 2T

A meeting was held in 2012 in which the remuneration committee reviewed
the remuneration policies and approved the salaries of the executive directors.
No director took part in any discussion about his own remuneration. The
remuneration committee has communicated with the Chairman of the
Company about proposals relating to the remuneration packages of other
executive directors and senior management.

Directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid individuals in the
Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements, respectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with the
following duties:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations on changes and
updating;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors;
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; and

° such other corporate governance duties and functions set out in the
CG Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board are
responsible.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the Former CG Code and
the Revised CG Code during the year of 2012.

COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2012, the company secretary of the Company, Mr. Chan
Tao Ming Alex (appointed on 18 January 2008), fulfills the requirement under
Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company,
the company secretary supports the Board, ensures good information flow
within the Board and Board policy and procedures are followed; advises the
Board on governance matters, facilitates induction and, monitors the training
and continuous professional development of Directors. He has attained not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Review Period.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the external auditors of the
Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The Audit Committee
has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be
re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company paid Messr. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the external auditors of the Company,
HK$530,000 as audit fees (2011: HK$495,000).

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 44 to 45 of this
annual report.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with its
shareholders and investors. A shareholders’ communication policy setting out
the principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’ communications,
with the objectives of ensuring a transparent and timely communication with
shareholders via various means, has been established.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) is a valuable forum for the
Board to communicate directly with the shareholders and to answer
questions shareholders may raise. Separate resolutions are proposed at
general meetings for each substantial issue, including the re-election and
election of individual directors. The detailed procedures of conducting a poll
are explained to shareholders at the commencement of the AGM, to ensure
that shareholders are familiar with such procedures.

The Company’s last AGM (2012 AGM”) was held on Friday, 27 April 2012 at
Ballroom, 1st Floor, South Pacific Hotel, 23 Morrison Hill Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. All the resolutions proposed at that meeting were approved by
shareholders of the Company by poll. Details of the poll results are available
on the Company’s website at www.fujianholdings.com.

The attendance record of the Directors of AGM is set out below:

Directors s
WANG Xiaowu TR
WANG Ruilian FifE
LIU Xiaoting 2 /NST
FENG Qiang E 28
YE Tao o=
LAM Kwong Siu B JK
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher REEIE
LEUNG Hok Lim P EAE
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Mr. Wang Xiaowu, is the Chairman of the Group, was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 April 2012 as he had other
engagements in China. Mr. WANG Ruilian and Mr. LIU Xiaoting, both are
executive directors of the Group; they are responsible for the daily operations
and execution of the strategies developed by the Board. They are eligible to
answer questions at the annual general meeting.

A key element of effective communication with shareholders and investors is
the prompt and timely dissemination of information in relation to the Group.
The Company commits to report to the shareholders of the Company the
Group’s corporate information in a timely and punctual way through notifying
or mailing to all shareholders via press release, Interim Report and Annual
Report. The circular of the Annual General Meeting will be distributed to all
shareholders of the Company at least 21 days prior to the meeting, which set
out the requirements and the procedure of the vote and the relevant details of
other proposed resolutions. The printed copies of the Group’s Annual Report
and Interim Report have been dispatched to all the shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing Shareholders and potential investors. It
welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries
to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2012. A copy of the latest
consolidated version of the Memorandum and Articles of association is
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirement under Paragraph O of the Code.
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Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition
by shareholders

In accordance with section 113 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of
the laws of Hong Kong), shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-twentieth of such of the paid-up capital of
the Company which as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, may require the directors of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”). The written requisition
must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the registered office of the
Company’s for the attention of the Company Secretary. The requisition may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
shareholders concerned.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an EGM for a day not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the EGM is
given, the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an
EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings are to be convened
by the directors of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the board
of directors of the Company in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Fujian Holdings Limited

Room 09, 11th Floor, COSCO Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Email: info@fujianholdings.com

Tel. No.: +852 2810 9222

Fax No.: +852 2868 9930

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the board of directors and/or relevant board committees of the
Company, where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.
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Proposing a resolution at an annual general meeting

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to propose a resolution at an
annual general meeting pursuant to Section 115A of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) if they:

@)

represent not less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
annual general meeting; or

are no less than 50 shareholders holding the Company’s shares on
which there has been paid up an average sum, per shareholder, of not
less than HK$2,000.

The written requisition must:

@)

state the resolution, accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at the annual general meeting;

contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which may be contained
in one or in more copies in like form);

be deposited at the Company’s registered office (Room 09, 11th Floor,
COSCO Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than 6
weeks before the annual general meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than 1 week before the
annual general meeting in the case of any other requisition; and

be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and
circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all shareholders
in accordance with the requirements under the applicable laws and
rules.
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PROPOSING A CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR AT ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to Article 105 of the articles of association of the Company, if a
shareholder intends to nominate a person other than the retiring Directors for
director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit the following documents to
the Company’s registered office during the period commencing on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of such meeting and ending no later than
seven days prior to the date appointed for such general meeting, and the
length of the notice period shall be at least seven days:

(@)  a written notice of such proposal for the attention of the Company
Secretary, signed by the shareholder who is qualified to attend and
vote at the general meeting;

(b)  biographical details of the candidate as set out in Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (x)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited; and

(c) awritten consent signed by the candidate indicating his/her willingness
to be elected.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s management believes that risk management is an essential
component of the Group’s administrative structure. The management assists
the Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group’s
business, including investment risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk etc, and
participates in designing and formulating appropriate risk management and
internal control measures, and to ensure its implementation in daily
operational management.

The management considers that the investment risk management measures
provide guarantee to the Group through its way of seeking new development
opportunities, as to secure reasonable return in every investment, to reduce
investment risks and to avoid possible loss attributable to investments.

The Group’s risk management towards liquidity aims to ensure that under all
circumstances there exists sufficient capital to fulfill repayment obligations of
all debts due, to maintain good creditworthiness, to finance reasonable
investment opportunities and to fuel business development. The Group’s
accounting department is responsible for daily financial activities and monitors
liquidity position from time to time to cope with business operation of the
Company.
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CORPORATE MONITOR

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s overall corporate
reporting process and control system, while the corporate reporting standard
is handled by the accounting department, which makes regular review of
resources allocation and financial reporting system properly. Compliance with
Code on Corporate Governance Practices, the Listing Rules, SFO and other
applicable laws and regulations are handled by the Company Secretary. The
Company’s management meets with the Executive Directors regularly to
review and brief the reporting system, and the Audit Committee annually to
review and brief the reporting system.

A package of detailed materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors of the Company is provided to each newly appointed Director of
the Company, in which it is especially specified the applicable rules and
regulations (including the Listing Rules) that the first time appointed Directors
of the Company shall notice and understand.

In respect of the securities transactions made by Directors and relevant
employee, the Company has adopted Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, the
Model Code, as its own of conduct regarding the standard for securities
transactions. Printed copies of the Model Code have been distributed to each
Director and relevant employee of the Group as stipulated therein. All the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the standards set out
therein.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive

information about the Group are also subject to compliance with guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report
J8 N 2 B i

HLB

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujian Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 46 to 130, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

44

| Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

ot EH AR A

31/F, B
Gloucester Tower IR

The Landmark EITH 115
11 Pedder Street & i &5
Central EETHKRE
Hong Kong 311&
FERBERBERATARRE

(REBZMAELA)BRAA])

RNAZEA (AT EBIEMD BB EHRE
A6 10 EBERER A (A TEBIEAR
ADREWNBRAR(GBIEEE]) 2460
BHRE UWEAUBEBRREER=Z—Z=F
+-— A=+ BHHRAERARMEMRREKHE
HEZBLFENGREAEZEWER HAE
HmEPRNEGEEBHESRER UREE S5
BRBEREMHFREER -

EENARAMBHRRAEE

HEFE

BERAAEFARERBEBBEAMASRM
EKEEM B HREEN R EFB(R G H
BEAMBRE AEAVBRRELE
EMAFHORR REEERSHEEREAM
BRERMALBOARNBES - AELE SR
RPN FHEHRRFAERMEBMNERNER
Rt o

REE N EE

BN EERRERMANEFEZEFRAY
BHRREFLER  LRBEB(RBG)E
14 REREEBRRRSE Rk 2N AR E 5
BEHEMEN -HMATERABENRATRAE
MEMALTE EHAEEAMETL - RMAZR
BEEGAMASHEMACKEBETEA)E
TEM RFRUBRAMBTERREL A
REDATES AEBREESMBRE
EAB T FHEEAERERRL -



Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income

A T HEW s R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)

BHE—

E——HF+-_A=+—BFECALETIITR)

2011
7T__£E

(restated)

(&%)

Revenue Iy = B 14,647,166
Other income Hfw A 7 6,616,670
Other gains and losses Htnlm R AR 8 4,990,043
Employee benefits expense BEIR/AXH 10 (5,866,796)
Depreciation e 15 (3,212,093
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment FE 1 70 & FroE # 8y 16 (1,874,007)
Share of profit of an associate FE{E — R B QT 2 EF 1,107,825
Other operating expenses Hth K& EH (10,334,753)
Profit before tax B i Al % Rl 6,074,055
Income tax credit/(expense) FrefER (%) S (1,126,712
Profit for the year 75 B i A 10 4,947,343
Other comprehensive income Hh 2w =
Exchange differences on translating BMEBIINEBEEZ

foreign operations P& X =58 630,710
Other comprehensive income for the year 7< £ & H 4t 2 [ Uk 630,710
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE 2 HE K FZ A EE 5,578,053
Earnings per share FREF
Basic (HK cents per share) EAXR(FREBEMWL 13
Diluted (HK cents per share) #E (FREMW) 13

46

| Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition

= A SN
iRa MBIk
At 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
RZTE——F+=-_A=+—BUABETIR)

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 01/01/2011
—T——F
+=-A=+—-8 +=A=+—H —HA—H

(restated) (restated)

(&31) )

—E——F —FT——F

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEKRE 15 36,763,638 40,096,323
Prepaid lease payment AR EERIE 16 26,079,923 27,953,930
Investment properties A 17 29,800,000 28,675,000
Interest in an associate R — BN a]
2 19 11,631,435 10,038,350
Deferred tax assets REHIAEE 24 1,894,269 1,894,269
106,069,265 108,657,872
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 93,678 143,036
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& Hth g U BR X 21 9,029,332 3,002,037
Bank balances and cash WITHBRRE 22 43,289,903 37,914,888
52,412,913 41,059,961
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMMER 23 5,363,032 3,450,697
Current tax liabilities BNEARITH & & 1,449,273 =
6,812,305 3,450,697
Net current assets REBEEZE 45,600,608 37,609,264
Total assets less current MEERARBEE
liabilities 151,669,873 146,267,136
Capital and reserves BRAER #E y
Equity attributable to owners RAREA AEIERER \ S G n
of the Company AT VA
Share capital % A 25 66,780,000 66,780,00C \\ )
Reserves e 72,232,005 L
Total equity AR A 35 4 50 139,012,005 )
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEA E 24
Trade and other payables B 5 KkEMEMRR 23

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 130 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2013 and are

signed on its behalf by:

EEER=

Wang Xiaowu
AR
Director

EF




Consolidated Staterment of Changes in Equity

== N\ / 2\_
\\/—_I_\ 1; / RN =1 E}J %
!

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE_Z——F+-A=+—BFEUABTIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company
KATEEAEMN

Share Share Translation Accumulated

capital premium reserve losses

BRE BROEE BEREE RitEE
(Note 25) (Note 26)
(MizE25)  (Mi=E26)

Balance at 1 January 2011 Rn=—_ZE—F—HF—H

(as previously reported) (kAT R %) 66,780,000 576,659,713  (7,277,983) (506,447,862) 129,713,868
Adjustments (see note 2) FAE (R HE2) — — — 3,720,084 3,720,084
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-—_ZE——%—H—H

(restated) (&%) 66,780,000 576,659,713  (7,277,983) (5602,727,778) 133,433,952
Profit for the year N F E 5 A — — — 4,947,343 4,947,343
Other comprehensive income NEEHA

for the year e — - 630,710 = 630,710
Total comprehensive income AEEEA

for the year U 25 48 58 — — 630,710 4,947,343 5,578,053
Balance at 31 December R-ZE—F+=_A1

2011 (restated) =+—H(&E3) 66,780,000 576,659,713  (6,647,273) (497,780,435) 139,012,005
Profit for the year IR g F = = = 1,551,443 1,551,443
Other comprehensive income NEEH A

for the year 2R — — 402,365 — 402,365
Total comprehensive income REE2HE

for the year g 3% 1 25 — - 402,365 1,551,443 1,953,808

Balance at 31 December 2012 RNR-ZZE——F
+=—A=+—H 66,780,000 576,659,713  (6,244,908) (496,228,992) 140,965,813
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Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Income tax (credit)/expense

Bank interest income

Share of profit of an associate

Amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Gain arising on change in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of an investment property

Loss on disposal and write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised on property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables

Impairment loss recognised on other
receivables

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\/\ EE, vl //w %

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-Z——F+-_A=+—BFEUABTITR)

2011
—T——F

(restated)

(&%)

REXBRERE

N4 2 i Al 4,947,343
AEIER
TR (A Fx 1,126,712
RITH B U A (569,893)
FEAE — B & R F) 2 5 A (1,107,825)
T H & R IE B 5 1,874,007
M- BEREEZITE
3,212,093
BEMEQNFERE
(3,925,000)
HERE MR E (855,565)
HjE&WiﬁfF%%»JFEE&
BB BEER 75,428
ME - BEREHEZ
B BB R 175,990

I E 5 R 2R EEBERER
82,118
H A e U IR 3R 2 R B S IR FE TR
59,774

Movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other

receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables

EEESEPI L KERS
FE GG, B
B 5 R E it AR ZOR A (& )

B 5 R HE M BRR OB A,/ i

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Interest received
Income tax paid

MEEEES (XH)/ HA
2 W F B
B RS H

Net cash (used in)/generated by
operating activities

REEBRES (W) RATHE




Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows [continued]

HeBRLRER(E

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE_Z——F+-A=+—BFEUABTIR)

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of an investment
property

REXBZRERE

BEDX BFE &K

KEHE—EREMEZAEHA

2011
—T——F

(restated)

(&)

3,655,565

Net cash generated by investing activities

REXBZRERAFE

3,655,565

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of year

Effects of exchange rate changes on the
balance of cash held in foreign currencies

RERRESERMFE

FHNZRERREEHE

AN\
L

8 2 B

5,043,841

37,914,888

331,174

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
year, representing bank balances and
cash

FHEZBERBEEE
HMRTESKRRE

43,289,903

50 | Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Statement of Financial Position

B 75 R 0 2R

At 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
RZTE——F+=-_A=+—BUABETIR)

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 01/01/2011
S : 2%

+=B=+-—-H
(restated)
(271)

—HA—8
(restated)
(E51)

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB && 15 82,121 146,953
Investment properties BEWE 17 29,800,000 28,675,000
Interests in subsidiaries =Nl 18 1,065,898 765,300
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEE 24 1,894,269 1,894,269
32,842,288 31,481,522
Current assets hREEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H e W R 5% 21 4,510,085 1,040,651
Bank balances and cash ROEBR LA S 22 41,843,022 37,267,428
46,353,107 38,308,079
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EH fth e R 3X 23 1,076,747 967,586
Net current assets REEEFE 45,276,360 37,340,493
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 78,118,648 68,822,015
Capital and reserves AR 7
Equity attributable to owners ENNGIESZEDN
of the Company FE(L 1 2
Share capital % A 25 66,780,000 66,780,000
Reserves & 26 11,331,479 2,030,955
Total equity RARER AL 78,111,479
Non-current liabilities *rBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 24 7,169

78,118,648

Wang Xiaowu
AR
Director

EF




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—8BFEUABTIR)

52

GENERAL

Fujian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in Hong Kong
as a public limited company and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate
holding company is HC Technology Capital Company Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its ultimate
holding company is fBEERES (SE)ER AR, a state-owned
corporation in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company is Unit 1109, 11/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are investment holding, property investment
in Hong Kong and hotel operations in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in these
consolidated financial statements are the same as those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2011, except for the following
amendments to HKFRSs that the Group has applied for the first time in
the current year and which have a material effect on the amounts
reported and/or the presentation and disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets in the current year. Under
the amendments, investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes unless the presumption is rebutted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

N

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets (continued)

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair value
model. As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS 12,
the directors reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that none of the Group’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors have determined
that the ‘sale’ presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is
not rebutted. The application of the amendments to HKAS 12 has
resulted in the Group not recognising any deferred taxes on changes in
fair value of the investment properties as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on disposal of its investment properties. Previously,
the Group recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of
the properties were recovered through use. The amendments to HKAS
12 have been applied retrospectively, resulting in the Group’s deferred
tax liabilities being decreased by HK$3,720,084 as at 1 January 2011
with the corresponding credit being recognised in retained earnings.
Similarly, the deferred tax liabilities have been decreased by
HK$4,172,175 as at 31 December 2011.

In the current year, no deferred taxes have been provided for changes
in fair value of the Group’s investment properties. The change in
accounting policy has resulted in the Group’s income tax expense for
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 being
reduced by HK$644,313 and HK$452,091 respectively and hence
resulted in profit for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011 being increased by HK$644,313 and HK$452,091
respectively.

Rl B8 Y
Bt %5 8

B ERE125% 2 87T
EAHIE  KEIHBEE

AEERAFEEXNGTERLREME - &
EAES ST ERFEI12HK 2B A
EEEMAEE REVEBEECLRA
AEEZEEYHEA BB E SR E I
REEEREXNTE MazmEERXE
— MBS T O SH AR FE R B W N B K BB 1D
KEMNZ AUHEERAED B STE
B2 2 BRI AP & 2 B & BRa&
WARWEE - ERABS ST ERFE125%
2%ﬂ$’m%@iﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁm¥2
AFEEZHHRTHNELEHE AN
SERLERSREMER  UTZR
REMBAT - BE  AEEERAEE
FEFREEEMEZRBEZ XM
EXCHEERMEREAREDNERTF
BEEHELHEB - BA ST EAE12 W\
SRR NEHER BERR_F—— AfEens”
F-A-EAEEZEEHRBABRDS
3,720,084 7 7T * 7 fR B8 & Al AR VE 35 hn 3
ER-ERM RZFT——F+_A=
T BEEH B A ERD4172175
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

re MR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—8BFEUABTIR)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements (as part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012)

Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012, the title of
which is “Annual Improvements to HKFRSs (2009-2011 Cycle)”. The
effective date of these amendments is annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKAS 1 as
part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle in
advance of the effective date (annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013).

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification
to present a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period (third statement of financial position). The
amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is required to present a
third statement of financial position only when the retrospective
application, restatement or reclassification has a material effect on the
information in the third statement of financial position and that related
notes are not required to accompany the third statement of financial
position.

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets for the first time, which
has resulted in a material effect on the information in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2011. In accordance
with the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group has therefore presented a
third statement of financial position as at 1 January 2011 without the
related notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

2y
AR A

B 7% 3% B =E (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)

H=E

—E-HF+ " A=t+—BFEUETIT)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EAFIRKBIEEH
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B EER(FB KR
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) £ 28 ) @

Impact of the application of amendments to ERAERBEER125
HKAS 12 =
Impact on profit for the year REERFZ &

FiT 15 5% 7 SR 4 I
R4 & g A1) 38 A

Decrease in income tax expense and
increase in profit for the year

452,091

Impact on net assets and equity as at 1 January 2011

Z

As at 01/01/2011
as previously
reported
25

N=
—H—H#a%l

M=

E-—F-A-—HYFEERER

=2
e

Amendments
to HKAS 12
adjustments
EREBE
EAM25EAE

As at 01/01/2011
as restated
R=ZF——F
—A—HEJ

Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 10,658,918 (3,720,084) 6,938,834
Total effect on net assets FEEZEHTE 129,713,868 3,720,084 133,433,952
Accumulated losses 2EtERE (506,447,862) 3,720,084 (502,727,778)
Total effect on equity BEz2HNFE 129,713,868 3,720,084 133,433,952

Impact on net assets and equity as at 31 December 2011

As at 31/12/2011
as previously
reported
R=-FB——F
+=A=+-AH
Al 51

ks

Amendments
to HKAS 12 As at 31/12/2011
adjustments as restated
R=FB——F
EREEE® +t=A=+-—H
EH25EHE ER]

Deferred tax liabilities RETIEEE 10,719,143 41721
Total effect on net assets FEEZENTE 134,839,830 I
Accumulated losses RETEE (501,952,610

Total effect on equity w2 2E B 134,839,830




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

iR MR R M et ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BFEWBTIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EAHII R KB F 5 B
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BHREERN(EBYBER
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) £ X281 ]) @

Impact of the application of amendments to FEREEBEEA125

HKAS 12 (continued) £ (@)

Impact on net assets and equity as at 31 December 2012 R-ZEB-—-—F+-A=+—-HHFEE
LiEZCEE

56

Amendments to HKAS 12

BB EA12FEET

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities & 1T i 18 & &5 2 4,816,488
Increase in net assets A E N 4,816,488
Decrease in accumlated losses 2R ER 4,816,488
Increase in equity REESIE N 4,816,488
Company ¥ NN

Impact on profit for the year TEERFzEE

FiT 15 5 7 SR 4 &
7N 6 4 F1J 38 hn

Decrease in income tax expense and

increase in profit for the year 452,091

R-ZB-——F—A-—HYFEERES

Impact on net assets and equity as at 1 January 2011

47
As at 01/01/2011 Amendments
as previously to HKAS 12 As at 01/01/2011
reported adjustments as restated
R=-ZT——F EREBE R-TB——F
—A—HAE% ERM25FFHE —A—RBE3l
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEE & 3,731,144 (3,720,084 11,060
Total effect on net assets FEEZEMTE 65,090,871 3,720,084 68,810,955
Accumulated losses E g (578,348,842) 3,720,084 (574,628,758)
Total effect on equity Bme2HwE 65,090,871 3,720,084 68,810,955
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of amendments to

HKAS 12 (continued)

Company (continued)

Impact on net assets and equity as at 31 December 2011

(continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

e B RRKEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

RN REETEEY
BHREEA(TERBYHR
S 28 ]) @)
EREBETEI12K 2 &
£ @

2 7 ()
R-2——E+-A=+—-AHTEE
L Erd 2 10 )

As at 31/12/2011
as previously
reported

Amendments
to HKAS 12 As at 31/12/2011
adjustments

as restated
R=-B——%F R=-B——F
+=ZA=+—H EAEBEF +=BA=t+-—H
RISl EBRNM25FFE B3

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAEE 4,179,344 (4,172,175) 7,169
Total effect on net assets FEEZEHNTE 73,939,304 4,172,175 78,111,479
Accumulated losses E i (569,500,409) 4,172,175 (565,328,234)
Total effect on equity e - 73,939,304 4,172,175 78,111,479

Impact on net assets and equity as at 31 December 2012

R-E-—-—FE+-HA=+—BHHUFEE
kiEZogE

Amendments to HKAS 12
BB ER1258185T

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities i 3E ¢ 18 & & & 2
Increase in net assets F AN
Decrease in accumlated losses R 5T E 18 R A
Increase in equity FE 25 180




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

re B maR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE_Z——F+-A=+—BFEUABTIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 1 Government Loans?
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
(Amendments) Assets and Financial Liabilities®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements®

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities®
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?
HKFRS 9 and Mandatory Effective Date of

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures*

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance®

Investment Entities®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
(Amendments)

="
}SZJ,.“‘ﬂ%ET 58 ﬂJH%#Ii”:/E
/\l

AEBERMARRGAMBRRT IR
RERNATERMERKRERZ
AT RBETREVHREERL

BN BRE LR BN EX®
EREACHES)

BEMBREER RE-HHEEREE
ENEACHEN] ke mAaRE

BN BRE LR SRMTA
ELel

BEMBREER GEMBERER
F1057

BN BRE LR BETH
F115%

BEMBREER REMERE 2 Em2
1258 BB

BN BRE LR AFEZFE?
£135%

BEMBREER BEMBREER
FIORRETH FORMAHIET
(BT A) BHRBAERE

BERBREER BAEMBHRE A%
F10%  E1HRR ZHRREMLELZ

F12% (BT A) BaZBE  BEES?
BERBREER
F105 - F12H R
FAHR(R=T——F
&IBET)
(BETA)

REER

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income’
Employee Benefits®

Separate Financial Statements®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
T——F+A=+—BFEGBTIR)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures®

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle except for the
amendments to HKAS 12

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

60

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have a significant impact on the amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.

B ()
BBV BBREERNEIR LA
T A (®)

c BMREEARRATEHAR
BEECsEMABENGE B
BHBRELBBOREER
BRZAEZEERARES
2ERMABATEED &
Eth2ERSEEY B
EthaEREEARZZA
BEEERREDYER &
BEELERBAGHRE
BRERH- BERSRA
BEzEERBREHZATE
28 HETEEHNHEE
HAE. UE RETESR \!
sHEBIE30%  HERAT (AN
ERABHEZSRABD

R ELTR
B B T 1 45 2 8| O A
nE—A-ARAEAS
SIEES R B YR

EFEEN R AKR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

re MR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—8BFEUABTIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FEH
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING iﬁﬁ
=S

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) All) )
2.1 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not 21 SHEMEERERNVHG
yet effective (continued) REIETEBUBHREE
Bl (a0
New and revised standards on consolidation, joint EEZEERE &8 %H B
arrangements, associates and disclosures ERNAIRBESEZHIR
KIEET 28|
In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint RZZE——F A FHEEMA
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including eBMmM—ELBEEBEEEE - &
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) S BME AT R EEIR
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). A BEEEMH REERFE10
9 BEMBHRELENENR A
BB EERNE 125  HEGS
HERA 75 (R —— FLIEE])
kEBEBSTEAF28H (R T —
—FABET) o
Key requirements of these five standards are described below. ZEEA 2 FEHRERMAOT ¢
HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and BEMBHREENEI0RINRAE
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated e ERFE2NR A RE Y
financial statements. HK (SIC) - Int 12 Consolidation — Special BHREXINEREEATBEER 2
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date of H-BE(EBREZEY)—RE
HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for F12W 4G KA — KX EHE
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a Bl BREBMBEREERIZE0
new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power SRAE RN B EA T AR - R BB M
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from B EERIEI0%  REKRERN
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its ME—EE QPSR o o - BAEMN
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s BEERF105 BB EGE 2
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to Ex - ETEE=ZEIH - @F %
deal with complex scenarios. THI IR E T QN2 EESTRE

R BEE BT YRR E &
ZREBRERN ROMAHEZR
BRAZ AP EBREER RS
BN - EARMBMEERF0
EMEMBRIE‘REREZES -

62 | Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS
11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC) - Int 13
Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by
Venturers will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS
11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint
operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under
HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are
required to be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31
can be accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than
those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on
the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to
the transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided all of these standards are applied at the same
time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 January 2013. The application of these five
standards may have significant impact on amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the directors
have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the
application of these standards and hence have not yet quantified
to the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items
for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in
specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the current
standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures
based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for
financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and
liabilities within its scope.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate the application of the new standard may
affect certain amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of the other new or revised standards, amendments and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group " s results of operations and
financial position.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances,
eliminated in full on consolidation.

income and expenses are

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them), and (i) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly and indirectly,
controls the composition of the board of directors, controls more than
half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued share
capital. Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified
impairment losses. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing
significant influence over that associate, any retained investment is
measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the previous carrying amount of the
associate attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant
influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the course of the ordinary activities, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when services are
provided.

Income from granting the management right of the Group’s hotel is
recognised in accordance with the terms of the contract.

Management fee income is recognised on quarterly basis for the fixed
portion and yearly basis for floating portion over the terms of contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating leases. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’ in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting policies
below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees in an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

| Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

FEETFHRRmw

BE @)
IE JEFi 18

BEEFRBARAVBRRAEERERE
B BR T B 62 51 55 8 AR 0 s A T BR AR AR JE

MEZERAR -BEERBEEE —RH
PERRRERZHER  EXEREE

EE Bl 3% m] A% (38 0] 4 &) A ] 0O E R =
B2 BRERRB ANM T AR - WM&
%%%ﬁmﬁ@&mmmﬁw HA
R EE N2 E A E R
%Li%%Am@MO%§$~J\gﬁ
REBEERARE

BEEHBRERENB QR 2R AR
ZERVERZRTIAER  HEHAE
BAEG RO R ERANETERA
RERBEEANGRN - REBHERE R
BRBAZATHRERZRMEL ZET
MIREEEN A BEE L RSB R E A
NBAEEERENLAARTRA RS
2R 3% o) B RE AR

REBIREEZ REEN T HEHEKR
{?*AET IEAT EEE?{]J—_E%%R/@%UI}?
B2kt & E B ER R

BB ELERABNEREESAM
BEMMER Y ERREHE  RER
BEMEARDEAREE FO B2
F(RBE)HH -

BEEMSHEBENEEZERBRAER
& AR R 7 % (B T8 1 5 2R AR I [ 3K 2 A+
BHREEMBERESBINBEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including hotel property held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost or fair value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the
date of revaluation less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is
stated at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent impairment losses, if any. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do
not differ materially from those that would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated under the heading of properties revaluation reserve
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously
expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation
of such land and buildings is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property, the attributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is
transferred directly to retained earnings.

Hotel property is interests in buildings and their integral fixed plant
which are collectively used in the operations of the hotel, and are stated
at cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. The
related repairs and maintenance attributable to hotel properties are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period which they are incurred. The costs of significant improvements
are capitalised.

Depreciation of the hotel property is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of the hotel property over the remaining lease
terms.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment other than hotel
property is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the reducing balance
method at a principal annual rate of 20%. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out basis. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other than
financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

re MR (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—8BFEUABTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person,

(@  has controls or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(i)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(@  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(b)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(c) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third party;

(e)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

() the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i); and

(@  aperson identified in (i)(@) has significant influence over the

entity or is a member of the key management.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in
measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any income
taxes on disposal of its investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions and
underlying assumptions adopted for capitalisation of the income
derived from the existing tenancies with due provision for the
reversionary income potential of the property interests.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of assets

The Group assesses annually whether assets have any indication of
impairment, in accordance with the relevant accounting policies. Where
an indication of impairment is noted, the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment will be estimated based on value-in-use
calculations or scrap value. These calculations and valuations require
the use of judgement and estimates on future operating cash flows and
discount rates adopted and estimated market value of the scraps.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar natures and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables

The policy for doubtful receivables of the Group is based on the
ongoing evaluation of the collectability and aging analysis of the trade
and other receivables and on the management’s judgement.
Considerable judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness, the past collection
history of each debtor and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate. If the financial conditions
of the Group’s debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their abilities to make payments, additional impairment losses of
trade and other receivables may be required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and other
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in certain provision for income
taxes for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognised liabilities for
potential tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amount that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relate to tax
losses, depends on management’s expectation of future taxable profits
that will be available against which tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their utilisation may be different.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)

S

5.

88

—E-—H+ - A=t+—BFECAETIIT)

REVENUE

iy %8

Gross rental income from letting of LK E
investment properties HE WAL
Revenue from hotel operations B JE E RS

1,410,874
13,236,292

14,647,166

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of services
provided.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

Property investment — the rental of investment properties

Hotel operations — the operation of hotel
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Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 7 EER @
THEWEREE
AEFZITBEROBIED 2 W R EE
DT :

reportable segments:

Consolidated
wE
2012

—E—_F

Property investment

Hotel operations
BIE ¥
2012

—E—_F

MERE
2011
—E——F

2011

—E——F

REVENUE Iy =
Revenue from external SN P U E

customers 1,410,874 13,236,292 14,647,166
RESULT ES
Segment result before other Rt E AU/

gains/(losses): (BB H 8

ES 1,250,381 3,478,525 4,728,906

Gain arising on change BEMERNTE

in fair value of g

investment properties
Gain on disposal of

an investment property
Impairment loss recognised

on property, plant

and equipment

3,925,000 3,925,000

HE—EREYFE

ME - BB R
REREZ

855,565 865,565

(175,990) (175,990) 088 ‘

Segment result

Unallocated income
Central administration costs

Share of profit of an associate

\
R e 6,030,946 3,302,535

R WA

RRITBAKA

JE A — il B
NIl

Profit before tax

Income tax credit/(expense)

B 5 Al i 7
FTE WA/ (B%)

Profit for the year

AN E s A
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, income from granting the
management right of the Group’s hotel of HK$4,335,941 (2011:
HK$5,897,143) is included in the segment result before other gains/
(losses) of hotel operations reportable segment.

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the current
year (2011: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/loss represents the profit
earned by/loss from each segment without allocation of bank interest
income and other unallocated income, central administration costs
including director’s remuneration, share of profit of an associate and
income tax credit/(expense). This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

TEER @m
PHEEEREE

AEBRABEFOBESPZ2EEREBRE
DT :

Consolidated
MERE B R =E
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012

—EF--fF | % fF —%F--Ff - & —B--F

Property investment

Hotel operations

(restated)
&:27))

ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 76,235,229 68,816,051 145,051,280
Interest in an associate R — B D R
ZHER 11,531,435
Unallocated corporate assets KEDNRBE 1,899,463
Consolidated total assets REBEE 168,482,178
LIABILITIES a1
Segment liabilities APEEE (1,076,747 (11,029,409) (12,106,156)
Unallocated corporate KEH AR BE
liabities (7,364,017)
Consolidated total liabilities e aE - - (19,470,173)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED) 6. 7EER @
Other segment information Hit 5 BE R

Property investment Hotel operations Consolidated

MEEE B IE ¥ )
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——fF |22 —fF —F-——-F Z%-—F —FT-—_-F 5§

Other segment information

Capital additions & R38N

Depreciation of property, ME - HE K
plant and equipment REZTE

Amortisation of prepaid T8 1~ 78 & 2008 % 55

lease payment
Gain arising on change in fair BREWMERAFE
value of investment properties W &

Gain on disposal of HE—ERE
an investment property e & (855,565)
Loss on disposal and write-off ~ H & K #fl 5 ¥ % -
of property, plant = K& 2
and equipment BB R
Impairment loss recognised BRESERZ
on trade receivables HEEEER
Impairment loss recognised HhEWERRZ
on other receivables VERIER SRR
Impairment loss recognised ME  BEREE
on property, plant ZREEEER

and equipment

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments

All assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain bank
balances and cash, interest in an associate and deferred tax assets.

All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain
balances of current liabilities and deferred tax liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 6. 7HEER@W
Geographical information i & & F
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the People’s AREEB 7 EHEKLERMETEREE S
Republic of China (excluding Hong Kong) (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong. — B (BEBBRIN([FE]DEREE -
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of operations NEBBRBINEZP 2 kzm R A BIEH
and information about its non-current assets by location of assets are REIDZIEREBEEEBRFEBTHT -

detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

KEMDBEFE 2Kz FRBEE

2012 2011 2012 2011
—= & —F-—-F [Z=—F
(restated)

(E71))

PRC 13,236,292 74,292,875
Hong Kong a5 1,410,874 31,776,390
14,647,166 106,069,265
No external customers of the Group contributed over 10% of the AEBR-ZE—Z-FR=-F——FET
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. RANBERLAANEEEBIEE10%Z

5 0 25 ©

HAb g A

OTHER INCOME

Income from granting the management right EAREEEEEIEER TEIE
of the Group’s hotel RIEBRAEE ZWA
(notes (i), (i), (i) and (iv)) CRREEE) » (i) + (i) B (iv)) )

Bank interest income SR1T A B U A
Others HAh




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
E—ZF+ZA=+—BFEUABTIR)

l\\/T\

BHE—

7. OTHER INCOME (coNnTINUED)

94

Notes:

0

(i

(i)

(v)

On 4 March 2008, Yan Hei Limited (“Yan Hei”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company and Xiamen South East Asia Company Limited (“Xiamen
Plaza”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Yan Hei Limited, entered into an
agreement with Fujian Sunshine Group Limited (“‘Sunshine Group”) and &
PIiE B E SR BPR A" (Xiamen Friendship International Co., Ltd)
(“Friendship International”). Pursuant to the agreement, Sunshine Group
agreed to transfer the management right of Xiamen South East Asia Hotel
(the “Hotel”), a hotel owned by Xiamen Plaza to Friendship International.

On 4 March 2008, Xiamen Plaza entered into a management contract
(“Management Contract”) with Friendship International in relation to the
appointment of Friendship International to manage the daily operation of
the Hotel for a period of five years. Friendship International has paid
RMB5 million as security deposit to Xiamen Plaza, which is refundable
upon expiry of the Management Contract.

The Hotel remains the property of the Group at all time under the
Management Contract and there will not be a transfer of ownership of the
Hotel at or after the completion of the Management Contract. Xiamen
Plaza is entitled to receive income from Friendship International which is
calculated in accordance with the terms of the Management Contract.

The Management Contract was terminated on 9 October 2012 due to
default in payment by Friendship International, and the Hotel has been
operated by the Group since 10 October 2012.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Gain arising on change in fair value of

BREMER

investment properties

Impairment loss recognised on

T

ME - BE MR EZRIE

H U A )

(i

(i)

E’\f??)\ﬁ AmBAREZEN

RALCEERA T(H_%EJ))SH_E%
|3E< RAE2EMBAREMEREEANE
Eﬁf‘&’&jﬁﬁxm)iﬁihﬁiﬁﬁtﬁl
BRAR (B RE]) & EPIZEEEE
EEARAR ([EEED RIS —HipEH -
Bt BAEEAREERREESZ
EFRAEAEE(DEE]D A&7
T BhEE -

RZZETN\FE=ZAMA  REERERT
VNEBZEREEARNEER ZBEAR

EEEBEARAHAF HEEAR
B A R % 5,000,000 7T 1E A 1R &
& WA RERE R E HBHERE -

BERASEZHME REEEAR
BEERETEEEREARTERRZ
BREZE - CEAEAIELN-—FZE
BERRGRFAEZEM -

HRREERSIE WEBEREN =
Z-_FTAANARLE MBZBEES—
T-_F+ATHEAAEERZE -

Hil sz R &8

property, plant and equipment [E5 1B 3R
Impairment loss recognised JE U BR 3k 2 B (B B 1R FE 7R
on trade receivables
Impairment loss recognised H P& U BR 3R 2 R (B S 18 T AR

on other receivables

Loss on disposal and written-off of

property, plant and equipment < 518
Net foreign exchange gains FONE W a
Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—EREMERE

HERMEYE  BERERE

3,925,000

(175,990)
(82,118)
(69,774)
(75,428)

602,788
865,565

4,990,043
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)

H=E

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

—E-HF+ " A=t+—BFEUETIT)

9. BB (KA BX

2011
—ET——%F

(restated)

(E751)

1,518,578

(680,522)
288,656

(391,866)

Current tax: BHAE 18 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEGEMEH
Deferred tax: IR IERT I
Current year KEE
Attributable to a change in tax rate JE A5 70 =R o
Total income tax (credit)/expense KEEFEH
recognised in profit or loss (A, F

1,126,712

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Company and its Hong Kong
subsidiaries did not have any assessable profits for the year (2011: Nil).

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2011:
25%) on the assessable profit of the Group’s PRC subsidiary as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations in the PRC.

EAFERIZMEEE RO Gt R
S A16.5% & -

RMRARR B REF BN E D B &G
ERBEHN MY BRBBHRERRARSE
BMEHAREB(CTE——F: E) -

s EHEATNCLAEHBERR
BRI SRR RBIRB%(=

T——1F :25%)MEE °




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BFEWBTIR)

9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continuep) 9. Fri8 % (Wt A), /B X ()
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to profit before tax per NAEENHRBYHEGEES2EKER
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: Fril s A ¥ BR 20 TS -

2012 —E—_F
Hong Kong PRC % Total %
BB FE Bk #WE Hfk
Profit/(loss) before tax B AR I (E518)
Tax at applicable tax rates % i A R 5 E 3
Tax effect of expenses not ~ RNAJ IR IE B 2 B 7
deductible for tax purpose £ 28
Tax effect of income not EAARTIER 2B
taxable for tax purpose za
Tax effect of tax loss RERRISEEZ
not recognised 15 5 2
Tax charge/(credit) and FRABREHESX
effective tax rate for (WA REBRBH =R
the year
2011 (restated) —=——F(F)
Hong Kong % % Total %
BB Bt ERlsd BE BfHL
Profit before tax & i Al Al 2,113,555 3,960,500 6,074,055
Tax at applicable tax rates 1% 38 F #i R 5t E B 7 348,737 16.50 990,126 25.00 1,338,863  22.04
Tax effect of expenses not ~ ~A] IR IE B 2 F7&
deductible for tax purpose £ 502,833 23.79 545,621 13.78 1,048,454 17.26
Tax effect of income not MARMIAE 2 B
taxable for tax purpose we (1,091,924) (51.66) (693,800) (17.51) (1,785,724)  (29.40)
Effect on opening deferred i FB % & 1% N & 2
tax resulting from an FHRER IR
increase in applicable BEZZE
tax rate — — 288,656 7.28 288,656 4.75
Tax effect of tax loss KERHIBEERZ
not recognised & 236,463 11.19 — — 236,463 3.89
Tax (credit)/charge and FERFE WA,
effective tax rate for X RERRR
the year (8,891) (0.18) 1,130,603 28.55 1,126,712 18.54
96 | Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Gross rental income from investment properties

Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for
investment properties that generated
rental income during the year

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

10. RFEER

2012

—E——F

FEEBFMEMB(GFA) :

Employee benefits expense
(including directors’ remunerations):
Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes

Depreciation of hotel property
Depreciation of other property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Total depreciation and amortisation

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as
other operating expenses
Share of tax of an associate
(included in share of profit of an associate)

KEMERe WA BT (1,410,874)
W RN FERIEEMERRZ
e AMELEE
el IN 88,881
(1,321,993)
B TaH&EH
(BREESH2) :
FeMEMER 5,410,009
RRET B K 456,787
5,866,796
EIEYEZITE 2,449,064
B BEERRKEZINE
763,029
3,212,093
TEAS 7 & SRIE 5 1,874,007
42 37 85 0 5 5,086,100
1% 5B B & 495,000

FERAERSEMEERR

FEfh — R Bt & R R IR
(BREERIE—HBE QR
23 M A)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BFEWBTIR)

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE M. EERITHERZHE
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2011: eight) HRNENARAR 8 (ZF——%F :8f1)
directors and chief executive were as follows: BEERTREEMSESOT

Contributions

Salaries and to retirement

other benefit

Name of directors benefits schemes
FEek RN E

ESnR Hwe H 1t 18 F it

2012 —s——f

Executive directors HITESE

Wang Xiaowu ENE

Wang Ruilian (Note) F s R (B 7))

Liu Xiaoting 21/T

Non-executive directors FHITESE

Feng Qiang R o8

Ye Tao i1

Independent BAUENITES
non-executive directors

Lam Kwong Siu REE K

Cheung Wah Fung, RE IR
Christopher

Leung Hok Lim P ER

Total emoluments FEN

98 | Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

MNMEBEERTHATN S @

EMOLUMENTS (conTINUED)
Salaries and
to retirement
Contributions benefit
Name of directors Fees other benefits schemes
ek RIRETE
EEHR e H fib 43 A H
2011 —E——4F
Executive directors HITEFE
Wang Xiaowu YE/PNE — 650,000 — 650,000
Wang Ruilian (Note) F I R (Bt 5 — 293,333 — 293,333
Liu Xiaoting 2/\T — 268,333 — 268,333
Non-executive directors HEHITEE
Feng Qiang R o8 = = = =
Ye Tao B®= — — — —
Independent BIIHNTESE
non-executive directors
Lam Kwong Siu & JK 100,000 — — 100,000
Cheung Wah Fung, RE IR 4
Christopher 100,000 — — 100,000 1
Leung Hok Lim 7 100,000 — — 100,000
Total emoluments BINE 300,000 1,211,666 — 1,511,666

Note: Mr. Wang Ruilian is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above including those for services rendered by him
as the Chief Executive.

There were no arrangements under which the directors of the Company
have waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors of the Company, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2011:
Nil).

i3 TR A A A TR .
SERBEFATRERSEMRS
i% ° | A TN

AATEERERHS
S -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
BE-_Z——F+-A=+—8BFEUABTIR)

12.

13.

14.

100

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
(2011: three) were directors and the chief executive of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosure in note 11 above.
The emoluments of the remaining two (2011: two) individuals were as
follows:

e R E MR
BRETEIHR

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes

12.

BEWE

EhERm#mEER =R (ZF——
FZR)RESERITRAE  BF 2B
EERHAMENZEEMERN - HHEM
FH(CE——F MBOALZHFHET :

628,040
20,552

648,592

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including the directors
of the Company, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2011: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2012 is based on the Group’s profit attributable to
the owners of the Company of HK$1,551,443 (2011: HK$4,947,343
(restated)) and on the weighted average number of 534,240,000 (2011:
534,240,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$10,180,957
(2011: HK$9,300,524 (restated)).

| Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

13.

14.

£ 7 1,000,000 7T 2 A ©

HE_E——S+-_A=t+—BIL&EE
HE TETWAL BEESEIH
B < 1E & TR 3| A0 A Sk N A K & B B 2 8%
CHIERBEREBE (T ——F &) -

BERER

EREABMNDEREDESHRA 2K
NAE=F B AEG R F1,551,443
BIL(ZZE — — F:49473438 L (E
) RAFEE BT EBK 2 INE
F 5 (534,240,000 ( = & — — F :
534,240,000%) & BARET & ©

RRRFEAEMERR

AR R FHAE AR F 10,180,957 7 7T
— T ——4 9,300,524 7T (EF])) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

34,082,803

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - MERKR®E
Group KE
Plant,
machinery
Hotel Furniture Leasehold and
property and fixtures improvements equipment
BRR BE - R
ipERyES #E L/ES3 R&RE
COST B A
At 1 January 2011 R=—ZF—F—H—H 92,391,462 2,880,308 6,479,998 4,536,203 106,287,971
Disposals e = (537,361) (110,030) (112,799) (760,190)
Effects of foreign currency INEEE R Z B K 5 &
exchange differences — 104,178 234,347 162,564 501,089
At 31 December 2011 RZT——%F
+=—A=+—H 92,391,462 2,447,125 6,604,315 4,685,968 106,028,870
Additions NE = — 216,086 226,522 442,608
Disposals farfi=— — (110,213) (101,260) (1,069,387) (1,280,860)
Effects of foreign currency INEER ZE R FE
exchange differences — 42,340 114,607 78,859 235,806
At 31 December 2012 R-_T——4F
+=—A=+—H 92,391,462 2,379,252 6,833,748 3,821,962 105,426,424
DEPRECIATION AND e RREE
IMPAIRMENT i
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——%—H—H 55,859,695 2,800,800 4,639,142 2,892,111 66,191,648
Provided for the year NEEFIE 2,449,064 16,759 410,032 336,238 3,212,093
Eliminated on disposals & B 8 M i s
of assets = (527,334) (64,144) (93,284) (684,762)
Impairment loss recognised BamlREE2
in profit or loss B FE R — — 175,990 L
Effects of foreign currency INEEREZRNTE
exchange differences — 94,463 170,892 104,908
At 31 Decermber 2011 RoT——4
+=—A=+—H 58,308,659 2,384,688 5,331,912
Provided for the year REFFE 2,449,064 13,219 357,009
Eliminated on disposals & B 8 N e
of assets — (110,213)
Impairment loss recognised BamlREEZ
in profit or loss B TR = W
Effects of foreign currency INEEREZRNFE
exchange differences — A H(0
At 31 December 2012 RZZT—Z=F i
S 2| = - == (5] 60,757,723 2,329,297
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2012 R=-=F—=
F=JE == [E 31,633,739
At 31 December 2011 R-ZT——%F




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BFEWBTIR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. %% - BMER &% @

(CONTINUED)
Company b NN
Furniture Leasehold Office
and fixtures improvements equipment
HM R N
®E MR EE R
COST B KA
At 1 January 2011 and R_ZT——4F
31 December 2011 —H—HK
—ET——%F
+=—A=+—H 44,660 101,260 111,326 257,246
Additions NE — 216,086 36,628 252,714
Disposals & - (101,260) (1,748) (103,008)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——4F
+=-—A=+—H 44,660 216,086 146,206 406,952
DEPRECIATION AND TERBE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011 wW—_ZE——F—H—H 17,690 25,315 67,288 110,293
Provided for the year KEEZEHFE 5,394 50,630 8,808 64,832
At 31 December 2011 RZT——4F
+=—A=+—H 23,084 75,945 76,096 175,125
Provided for the year REFZHE 4,315 73,334 10,730 88,379
Eliminated on disposal B B T 8 M B — (101,260) (1,502)  (102,762)
At 31 December 2012 RZT—_F
+=-—A=+—H 27,399 48,019 85,324 160,742
CARRYING AMOUNTS BRE &
At 31 December 2012 N-E——F
+=HA=+—H 17,261 168,067 60,882 246,210
At 31 December 2011 R—ZE——4F
+=—A=+—H 21,576 25816 35,230 82,121

The hotel property is situated in the PRC and held under medium-term URAPBR2BEMETZFTHBLRF
lease. B
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)

HE-_Z—

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of assets including property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land used in the Group’s hotel segment. In performing
impairment testing, the directors of the Company reviewed the carrying
amounts of these assets by reference to a valuation performed by
Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The recoverable amount of this
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on a value in use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period and a
discount rate of 9.6% per annum. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth in
revenue, direct and other operating costs during the period. The
management estimates discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU.

In the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment is considered to be less than its carrying amount
as at 31 December 2012, and due to strong competition with other
hotels established near the Hotel in Xiamen, an impairment loss of
HK$237,960 (2011: HK$175,990) in respect of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

15.

“HF+ A=+ —HBHFECUETIIR)

ME- -BEERRE®

RBEHRR AEEHEELTAR
REE EZNEEREEEXEKZY
X BEERREBERBANLHEERE-
EETRENAE  ARAREFNEH
BEZERAERE2Z EHERFHE
RARZMEE ERERFEERRA
RBYBXFEMMBENEMEE S
BEREAKEREHE - ZAIKEEE
ZHeEXBEN((REELBM])ER
BREEEMBLECAFAVBRER
ERZASRAYAREGFIONMAERZ
AREEAE TREENEERER
HARRER WARER BEEREMBE
ERAR - EREBMAZTRERD RKRA
BhmSdmceBNEREARRESE
HEEAZ FERR

EERAE BRDE BERZRERZ
T——F+-_A=+—8BzukE&sE
LEEEEmERD - REEF I 2 EMF
EEAERIGESE  AREBEE_T—=
F+ZA=t+—HLzZeazEE=EX

tEREREYE BEERBZRER

18 &237,9606 T (— &
HIT) °




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE_Z——F+-A=+—BFEUABTIR)

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 16. T HEMKIE

Group rEME
COST R
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 A= —=—t—= =le—=—rhs

and 31 December 2012

— 86,000,000
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERRE
At 1 January 2011 R-_E——F—H—H 58,046,070
Amortisation for the year REFE 2 HH 1,874,007
At 31 December 2011 N=_FT——F+=_H=+—H 59,920,077
Amortisation for the year NEE 2 HH 1,874,007
At 31 December 2012 R—_E—=—F+=-_HA=+—H 61,794,084
CARRYING AMOUNT ERME B
At 31 December 2012 N-—E——-—E+=-_HA=+—H 24,205,916
At 31 December 2011 N=—ZF——F+=H=+—H 26,079,923
Notes: B E

(i

(iii)

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement signed between the
Xiamen Railway Department Company Limited (“Railway Department”)
and Yan Hei, both parties have agreed to establish a Sino-foreign co-
operative joint venture enterprise known as Xiamen Plaza, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to operate and manage the
Hotel. The land use rights of the Hotel have been granted to the joint
venture partner and Xiamen Plaza is vested with the land use rights of the
Hotel throughout the operation period of Xiamen Plaza.

The Group’s prepaid lease payment is a leasehold land situated in the
PRC and held under medium-term lease.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of its leasehold land. The leasehold land is used in
the Group’s hotel segment. In performing impairment testing, the directors
of the Company reviewed the carrying amount of the leasehold land by
reference to a valuation performed by Norton Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.
Norton Appraisals Limited is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period and
a discount rate of 9.6% per annum. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth in revenue,
direct and other operating costs during the period. The management
estimates discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

There was no impairment for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY =

Group and Company

FEERERQTF

FAIR VALUE NS |

Balance at beginning of year F X #E R 28,675,000
Disposal & (2,800,000)
Gain on properties revaluation Y) 5 E (H R 3,925,000
Balance at end of year FIRAERR 29,800,000

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2012 and 2011 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out at that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards, was arrived on the open
market value basis.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above are
situated on:

Land and building in Hong Kong: UREE :
Long-term lease FHIAEL
Medium-term lease AR HEAE 49

EHERFEERAFDESEEAR T —
—f+=-A=+—BE=-Z2—— &+
ZAZT-HZEREMEAFEETR
B EHERFIEAERARNRBLESR
AIEMMBENEMBEEE REARE
BREHE YHEARBEERRSAT
BRI REY X2ER - %
HEDETEEINEMB MRS NY
EEEEN YRAFADE/SELEENT
RN

BRELLEHERFUARDES 2AEHE
EMERADRBATFERAGFE
WD ERARIMEREY X -

LREREMEZNEBRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BFEWBTIR)

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. i & 2 Al #E &=

Company
EATE

2012 2011
—E—=-F —T——F

Unlisted shares, at cost FEET R - LA A 588,543
Less: Accumulated impairment B 2EHRE (2,365)
586,178
Loans to subsidiaries BTHBRAIZER 107,969,908
Less: Accumulated impairment W 2EHRE (107,490,188)
479,720
1,065,898
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and FEWHI B AR RIE D EEE - B K7
have no fixed terms of repayment. BRETMHEN -

1 06 | Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

e B RRKEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company had interests in the
following subsidiaries:

Place of

establishment/ Proportion of
incorporation nominal value
and principal of issued capital/
place of registered capital

Name of subsidiaries operations held by the Company

B E3N): 3

BMYIREE EBRTRAEMER

WEAR &R LS HEZBEDL
2012

e

%

Direct subsidiaries:

EEMEAR:

Ming Chuen Construction Hong Kong
Company, Limited

I ZEARAA BE

Yan Hei Limited (“Yan Hei”) Hong Kong

CEARAA BB

Indirect subsidiary:

BEMEAR :

Xiamen South East Asia PRC
Hotel Company, Limited
(“Xiamen Plaza”) (notes ii)

EFREEANBEERRA A R E
(FERE 1) (B 5 Gi))

Notes:

(i) The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and no rights to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the company. In
the winding-up of the company, holders of the deferred shares are entitled
to receive half of the amounts paid-up or credited as paid-up on shares
after the holders of the ordinary shares of the company have received a
total return of HK$10,000,000 per share.

(ii) Xiamen Plaza was established as a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture
company under the laws of the PRC and is currently wholly owned by Yan
Hei.

100 Registered

18. B A B #E %= @)

ARRIRZZE——F+_A=+—HEK
—E——F+_-_A=+—BfEEzE
BB ARERFBOT

Nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital Principal activities

BRITRE
HAMEREE FTEXE

2011

%

100 Ordinary Investment

HK$100,000 holding
@A 100,00078 7 HE TR

100 Ordinary Investment

HK$10,000 and holding
Deferred (note i)
HK$10,000
T mAL 10,0008 T R REER
EIERR 15 (P 5 )
10,0007 7T

capital
US$5,000,000
HMER
5,000,000%-_7"1':_ Bl
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—REBE QAR 2 ER
Details of the Group’s interest in an associate are as follows: AREBZHMEARFBOT :

Company
PN

2012 2011
—== [

Cost of investment in an — A& A A

associate, unlisted TERKA  3E L™
Share of post-acquisition results & {5 U B& 12 % 7]

5,877,362
5,654,073

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had interest in the RZE——F+_A=T—BERZ=Z—
following associate: —F+Z A=+t —BAREEZBERA
ESER N
Place of
establishment/
incorporation Proportion
and principal of nominal value of
place of registered capital Nominal value of
Name of associate operation held by the Group registered capital Principal activities
RIREE REBESL BT
NG E 30k HEMEAEEZADL EMEAEE FEXK
2012 2011
—E——fF
%
Fuzhou Harmony Piano Co., Ltd. PRC 25 Registered capital Design, manufacturing
(“Harmony Piano”) US$2,000,000 and distribution of
piano and related
products
RINFZHZFR A A A AMER R BERDH

2,000,000% 7t #MEREBEE®
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19.

20.

21.

e B RRKEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 19. R—HEBEQNRAZER@
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s REEBRERNR ZHBERBMAT :

associate is set out below:

Total assets BEE 95,327,493
Total liabilities waE (49,201,752)
Net assets BEEFE 46,125,741
Group’s share of net assets of an associate SEES—HEEAR

ZEREE 11,531,435
Total revenue U %5 73,396,863
Total profit for the year 7N 2 3 4,431,300
Group’s share of profit of an associate S EEML —FEE AR 2R 1,107,825
Group’s share of other comprehensive income EEEH—BHBEAAZ

of an associate H b2 Uz

INVENTORIES 20. 7€

Consumables

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
rE ARH
2012 2011 2012
—g-=¢ |- & -—g-—-=&

492,107
(249,662)

242,445

Trade receivables B E 5 IR K
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts ¥ : % BE £ &

Other receivables, utility deposits — H i fE Yg 018 « A A
and prepayments Rk e kAR
KIA
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts J& : & BF # &

Total trade and other receivables £ 5 K H fth & Uk BE 5%
Pk
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BFEWBTIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continuep) 21, B 5 & H {tb FE Uk BR =X (an)

An aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful BRZEH REERRLEEHEHRR
debt at the end of reporting period, based on the invoice date, is REE2ERKESRAZERS AN
as follows: T :

Group Company
&K AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-——-F —= —fF —B-—-F == §

Current to six months BNERZ= /<@ A 242,445 1,000
Over six months and ANEA N ER

within one year —F R - 5
Over one year Bil—F — _

242,445

The average credit period on rendering services is 45 days. SEHREHAENTAK -
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with R EHER AEEEBE 2BEBAR
aggregate amount of Nil (2011: HK$2,726) which are past due as at BREZERESRBRZT(ZE ——
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment F 2,726 ) c REBIWKRE B @K
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The HEBEMER - EEBHEFHAEN+ R
average age of these receivables is 45 days (2011: 45 days). RK(ZEBE——F :U+HK)°
An aged analysis of trade receivables that are not considered to AFAREBEZFEREZRAZERR D
be impaired is as follows: Erigk 1

Company
ARF

2012 2011
—g—— (S8

1,000

Neither past due nor impaired i H & B E 239,719

Past due but not impaired i@ EE R (A

Current to six months BER = /<@ A 2,726

Over six months and within NE A E R

one year —F LA

Over one year il —
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large RBEA R R E 2 EWRRB R % [ER
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history HSEMRTENRE -
of default.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continuep) 21, B 5 & H {tb FE Uk BR =X (an)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of BHEERREZEREREANEERE
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. BHTHENBYREE BIEBELR
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the KRB EERAEZTANSESRIERE
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of BiE Eiz EEE2ERFEANE KL
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit RO e REBITARZELEHFTR
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The FEREFREEERA -

Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade BoEWETRERRE2SEBNOT :
receivables is as follows:

Company

AAF

2012 2011
=F-—=F —=—F

Balance at beginning of the year 4 %] & 4 160,430

Impairment loss recognised JE Uit AR SR e SRR (B

on trade receivables ZHEK 82,118 al
Amounts written off during KEZAREE

the year as uncollectible Al 2 & 58 T
Foreign exchange b b, Uk 7

translation gains

Balance at end of the year FIR &

249,662

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on other HEUWERRRBEEZSHOT
receivables is as follows: A

Company
ARH
2012
B

Balance at beginning of the year 4= #J] 4% &4 12,398,426

Impairment loss recognised E h & Y BR S R
on other receivables VRN =ES
Amounts written off during KEZANREE
the year as uncollectible AU B 2 & 58
Foreign exchange bE b, Uk 7

translation gains

Balance at end of the year FIRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)

S

21.

22.

112

—E-—H+ - A=t+—BFECAETIIT)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CoNTINUED)

Included in the allowances for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables and other receivables with balances of HK$84,237
and HK$16,310,936 (2011: HK$249,662 and HK$12,914,593)
respectively. The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties or in dispute and the management
assessed that the recovery of the amounts is doubtful. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

An aged analysis of impaired trade and other receivables is as
follows:

Current to six months BIEAZ= 75 (@ B
Over six months and within NE A ER
one year —F RN
Over one year fBiE—F
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2012

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERE
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rates
which range from 0.7% to 4.8% (2011: 0.05% to 5.1%) per annum.

At 31 December 2012, time deposit, bank balances and cash of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$38,307,000 (2011: HK$31,369,000). The remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed
by the government of the PRC.

| Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

= —F =
3,647,197
39,642,706

43,289,903

N ESREMEVRERR @

AERBEPEEAINREZE S RE
ft, FE WX BR 3 D Bl B 4 #284,2377% T &
16,310,936/ 7T (= F — —4F : 249,662 7%
7L ] 12,914,598 7 7T.) ° & Bl 8 B FE Uk 5%
BHERVBER#FSUD RS BB
BEFASKREZERE AEETR
MZEEBRITHEMIER G-

EREE S R H At B ARz MRk 2 A 0
T:

Company
KA F

2012 2011
—E-—F T —F

Company

ARF
2011 2012 2011
—F—= —E——f
2,200,315
39,642,707

41,843,022

BTESRBRESERTERZIHH Xt
HoRMHBRTERZBITFFNEAROTE
ZA8EZETEMNKRFE - (ZF——F -
FERKROOEESIE) °

R-EBE——FE+-_A=+—0 A&H
THER BOTEHLKREAARE
(TAR¥]) € % K #4938,307,0007%8 7t (=
T — — 4 : 31,369,000/ L) c FE 2 &
B 1T HNE BE 4 o
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

23. E5 R H b B Y AR K

Group

Company
KA F

2012

rEHE

2012 2011 2011

—F-——fF (== -—F —FT——fF ==&
Trade payables B EMNER 1,038,683 9,775
Other payables H b BT AR X 10,435,249 1,066,972
Total trade and other payables B 5 MHEAMEER
Az 11,473,932 1,076,747
Less: Other payables classified B E b FE ST BR X
as non-current liabilities DEAIERE
(note) =Rt
(B &%) (6,110,900) —

Note: At 31 December 2011, pursuant to the Management Contract, Friendship
International paid RMB5 million, equivalent to HK$6,110,900, as security
deposit to Xiamen Plaza, which is refundable upon expiry of the
Management Contract.

The Management Contract was terminated on 9 October 2012 due to
default in payment by Friendship International.

An aged analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

Current to six months BIERZ= 7X@ A
Over six months and ~E A E R
within one year —FRA

Over one year fBiE—F

The average credit period is 45 days.

5,363,032

ME-RZFT——F+=_A=+—H" ' RI&
EEAR HEERARBEIGTARE
5,000,0007T * 18 & 76,110,900 7t 1F
ABRER S ZRBESATREEER
E|HR{& R [ o

1,076,747

MRBERERRE  REEARBER =
ST ALBRL:

ENESRAREERREEA ZRR
oW

Company
ARQFE

310,313

145,078
583,292



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

ira MR AR Y ot (8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior year:

Group

Deferred tax liabilities

24, EEFIE

KEH
EEHEEE

Accelerated tax
depreciation

EBEFE

UTRAEERAEFERBEFERER
ZEBBREVIRGEHRIEE

Total
L8]
(restated)

(E75)

At 1 January 2011 R-_E——F—H—H 6,938,834 6,938,834
Credit to profit or loss (note 9) RiEEFER (B9 (680,522) (680,522)
Effect of change in tax rate TR E & 288,656 288,656
At 31 December 2011 RN=F==0Egr= B == 6,546,968 6,546,968
Credit to profit or loss (note 9) R E (FT5E9) (443,712) (443,712)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZE—Z-—HF+=-HA=+—H 6,103,256 6,103,256
Deferred tax assets EEBIBEE

Tax losses
HEEER

At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 RZTE——F—HA—RB -=Z2—F+=A8
and 31 December 2012 =t+t—HBER-_ZE——F+=-_HA=+—H 1,894,269

Company

Deferred tax liabilities

A
o 5E 105 B 18

Accelerated tax
depreciation

EBIEFE

Total
(restated)

(E7)

At 1 January 2011 R-_ZTE——F—F—H 11,060 11,060
Credit to profit or loss RE=HE R (3,891) (3,891)
At 31 December 2011 NR—_E——F+_H=+—H 7,169 7,169
Charge to profit or loss REEZEP I H 27,067 27,067
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZE—-—H+=-HA=+—H 34,236 34,236

1 1 4 | Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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25.

e M mRNE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHEEWBLIR)

DEFERRED TAXATION (conTINUED)

Company (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 i
and 31 December 2012

24, IE 3E B 15 (@)

—F-——%—-A—-B ZF-——%+-A
=t+—-BARRZ=F—=

KD T @)
EEMREEE
Tax losses
HEEE
F+-_HA=+—H 1,894,269

With regard to the Group’s investment properties, as none of them is
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
investment properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes
on disposal of its investment properties.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$144,871,783 (2011: HK$140,072,612) available for offset against
future taxable profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. At 31
December 2012, deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect
of tax losses of HK$11,480,421 (2011: HK$11,480,421). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
HK$133,391,362 (2011: HK$128,592,191) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

SHARE CAPITAL

2012
—E2—-_—F

Number
of shares
BREHE

Authorised EER A

Ordinary shares of % EE 0.12578 7T
HK$0.125 each 2 &R

Issued and fully paid ERTRBZRAK

At beginning of year FEBR R FER

and end of year

25, IR 2

MRAEEZREME ERAKEZ
KREWEAEGLERE M ERE
BERASA MaxBERAE—RE
B RB FREE R E Y R NE KB L&A
m AKEWLERBTAETHEAR
HERASEYIFRLEMELEMSR
REMEMEEZAFEES -

R—ZEBE—-—%F+=-_A=+—H K&
B 5144,871,783%8 (= & — — F :
140,072,612 7T ) < 2 51 7% 1H & 18 7] &
PR B 45 B8 o A = B s RS NS
— B ERRAELEHEBEBEEMNTIE
B 18 511,480,421 L (= F — — F
11,480,421 70) - MR KL TBEF A& 2
A - BRI RE183,391,862 B L (= F
— —F 128592191 ) 2 Bt i\

EERER -

2011
—F——%
Number
of shares
B2 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BFEWBTIR)

26. RESERVES 26. %

5L B

AEERBEEH 2 FIE
Az aRaZEx-

(a) Group (@

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 48.

B E48

(b) Company (b) & AT
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
10 = E 2 ER &5t
Note (i) (restated)
() (E71)
At 1 January 2011 RZE——4F
(as previously reported) H—H
(20 2 A PR &) 576,659,713 (578,348,842) (1,689,129)
Adjustment FEESS = 3,720,084 3,720,084
At 1 January 2011 (restated) R-_ZE——%F
—HA—B (&%) 576,659,713 (574,628,758) 2,030,955
Profit for the year N E R A — 9,300,524 9,300,524
Other comprehensive income RFEE A2 E WS
for the year = = =
Total comprehensive income KFEEEENR=RE
for the year — 9,300,524 9,300,524
At 31 December 2011 (restated) » = Z——4F
+=A=+—8H
(&E7)) 576,659,713 (565,328,234) 11,331,479
Profit for the year N E ER A — 10,180,957 10,180,957
Other comprehensive income RNEE HAn 2 E W 2=
for the year = = =
Total comprehensive income AFEEEHENK=RRE
for the year — 10,180,957 10,180,957
At 31 December 2012 R=-E——F
+=A=+-8 576,659,713 (555,147,277) 21,512,436
Notes: P FE
i) The application of share premium is governed by Section 48B of 0] AR 10 i@ B 2 A XA AR ARG
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. FABBIRFTEEE ©
(ii) At 31 December 2012, no distributable reserve of the Company (ii) R=ZF—=F+=ZA=+—8"

1 1 6 | Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

was available for distribution as dividends (2011: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)

HE-_Z—

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (including trade
and other payables), cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Gearing ratio

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the management of the Group considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and the issue of new shares as well as the issue of new
debts.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

27.

“HF+ A=+ —HBHFECUETIIR)

EXERER

AEEEBREER  UERAEEET
BILEBEBRASBRBRRT KD R -
AEEZEERBEEIF B

AEBEZEARBERAB(BRES
REMEMER ReERRSFEEAE
URARAFAEARGERZ BREE%
TR R f 8 o

AEBWREEMIEBIEMEERFT

BELR

AEEERETHMEHNEARNER X
SEEREEEREAKRARERER
ZBRBOERESFHOEFPEMD - A
SEERERERE  BITHREET
HMAERAFEEBEARRRE -

BEAXRLLERAFERRNT ¢

2012
—E——fF

2011

Debt (note i) BEIE (K EEi)
Cash and cash equivalents RITEBRRIE S
Net debt BERUERR

Equity (note ii) & A A (B 5T i)

Net debt to equity ratio

FERE R AR R

Notes:

(i) Debt comprises current trade and other payables as detailed in note 23.

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Group.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. €T A

(a) Categories of financial instruments (@ EMIAESE

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B3 % pE W kI8
— Trade and other receivables —Z 5 & H b IR TR 7,875,891
— Bank balances and cash —RITEBRLEERE 43,289,903
51,165,794
Financial liabilities cRAE
Amortised cost BIHA AR
— Trade and other payables — B REMENEKRRK 9,764,893
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) cREAREEBEEMBE
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other AEBEZFTEZESMIERRES
receivables, bank balances and cash and trade and other REMEWRKIE  RITFRER
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in e BHREMENER - ZES
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial BMTAFERSHERE - TXH
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are JEZECRTABRZER X
set out below. The management manages and monitors these AR EZERR2BE EBE
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a EEREEZERR  ARERKEE
timely and effective manner. MERFEEEE 2 o
There has been no change to the types of the Group’s exposure AEBESMITASBERHIERER
in respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it EERA MR ENRE -

manages and measures the risk.

Market risk ™ 35 @ ks

Foreign currency risk management SN B B B RE

Substantial revenue and cost of the Group are denominated in ANEEE B Wz REKAZENEBE
the functional currency of the group entities. Certain other NAEEEGTE HETES R
receivables, bank balances and cash, and other payables are EMEWERR - SRITERERE R
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently does not B RkEMEMNSEKRRBINE A
have a foreign currency hedging policy, as the management BB AL o 7N & B3R 3 A A A1
considers the exposure to foreign currency risk is insignificant to EE®HPTA - BEEEESEHY
the Group. However, the management monitors foreign EEHNINERR  WRAKERERE
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign R E KINE R ©

currency exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 28. €T REmw

(b) TREREREBEENBE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk management

The Group is not exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group currently does not
have interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Price risk

As the Group has no significant investments, the Group is not
subject to significant price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 28. €@ T B

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) TREMREEEEMEE
policies (continued) ()
Liquidity risk management RBESRBRER
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and NEEBERESESEME  KEBE
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate BER#EFASLERRCELD R
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and NREEBEBRAEBREZ/KENUY#H
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. AEEBZEERRERESRER

Be¥E-

Liquidity tables Vi B & % MY &

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TRFAFWAEBHBEEBEZHT
maturity for its financial liabilities which are included in the EHEIBBER  ZEREZEI AR
maturity analysis provided internally to the key management N T EERBAERHEEERD
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity risk. The tables B RERB®RZINBBERDH - 3%
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of EWMERKMEBEEARAEFBHEKE
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group R EEHAEMEBETE Z2IETRRA
can be required to pay. BRE °

On demand Total Total
or less than 1to3 3 months Over 5 undiscounted carrying

one month months to 1 year 1to5years years  cash flows amount

BRER
LR —FF ikl IR
— @A BE EFE BRERE

2012 —E——fF

Trade and other B 3 K H b
payables FE{FBRFX 4,509,498 862,467 312,169 = = 5,684,134 5,684,134

2011 —FT——F

Trade and other & 5 K H fib

payables FEEERR 1,968,369 1,326,681 358,943 6,110,900 — 9764893 9,764,893
(c) Fair value of financial instruments c) eI RAZATE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are cHEEREMABGBEZATER

determined as follows: ATHAEE

()  The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities ()  BAF G AR 1R )5 BB
with standard terms and conditions traded in active market MEEBECeMEER SR
are determined with reference to quoted market bid and BEZAFEDNISFZEM
ask prices respectively. BB zZEABREEHEM

ERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

The fair values of derivative instruments are calculated
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives. Foreign currency forward contracts
are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and
yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching
maturities of the contracts. Interest rate swaps are
measured at the present value of future cash flows
estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield
curves derived from quoted market prices.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurement recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

An analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels
1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable
is as follows:

(i)

(iii)

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie. as
prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from

valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or y
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

28. @l T B )

c) EMIAZAFE@

i) PTETEZAFEEREM
HERFE - MARERHEZ
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ETEME) TABRRAER
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EBRLZERZE MR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CoNTINUED) 28. €@ T B
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (continued) c) EMIAZAFEm
During the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2012, there were Bz Z2——FKR_ZTT——_F+
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and A=t HIEFE F—KHESF
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. AN ENFEE 2 ERE

MEERENEREE =R -

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group did not have any W=
assets and liabilities that are measured at the fair value hierarchy. A=+—H XAEETHEEMIZ L

AAFEERAENEERERE-

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts EERE RBHEKANESESVE
of other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at WERPEENAEMEREERSD
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements MEBEEROAEEEEN LN FEME
approximate their fair values. B2
29. OPERATING LEASES 20. REMERH
The Group as lessee AEBEAHABEA

Minimum lease payments paid under operating AEFRBLEAS A

leases during the year: Z ARSI FRER -

Premises IS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company had NEBRREERD  NEEHKRAKARQ T &K
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- ERTAER B REBEREZEMNR
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: AR :

Within one year

In the second to fifth years inclusive R-_ERFERN

195,712
At 31 December 2012, operating leases relate to office premises with R-—ZE——&E+-_A=+—8 BB
lease term of two years. All operating lease contract contain market REMLCEHEREME - AEERHE
review clauses in the event that the Group exercise its option to renew. ERmGEEHHEEEW S ARERE-

The Group does not have an option to purchase the leased assets at
the expiry of the lease period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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29. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED) 2. RgHEZRHW

The Group as lessor AEBHREBAA

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$1,340,803 (2011: REARARBRZ2YWERS KW AD A

HK$1,410,874). All of the Group’s investment properties are held for 1,340,803 L (= & — — 4F : 1,410,874

rental purposes. The Group leases its investment properties under BIL) AEBZEREYWESEAED

operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging HAZ AEEAKCEHELHELEY

from one to two years (2011: 1 to 3 years). X -FBWMEZMEREPAEEAFH
AR ZEZ2_F(ZF——F: —E=F)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company had NEBRREER KEEEARQ A HE

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease AAABEEREHESNFENZEN

payments: ™ :

Company
YN

Within one year —FE R 3,315,283 1,369,328
In the second to WMEERFA
fifth years inclusive 2,769,735 1,658,310

2,927,638

6,085,018
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Employee share-based compensation benefits

Employee share-based compensation benefits represent the fair
value of employee services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of the
options at grant date. The amount for each period is determined
by spreading the fair value of the options over the relevant vesting
periods and is recognised as employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserve.

Share options
Purpose of the share options scheme

The purpose of the share options scheme is to provide
participants of the same with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage them to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

Eligible participants of the share options scheme

(i) any executive, non-executive or independent non-executive
director of any member of the Group or an entity in which the
Group holds an interest (“Affiliate”); (i) any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time) (“Employee”) of the Group or an
Affiliate; (iii) any shareholder of any member of the Group or an
Affiliate who has, in the opinion of the Board of Directors,
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group; (iv) any customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant
or adviser of or contractor to any member of the Group or an
Affiliate; or (v) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or
any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
consultant or adviser of or contractor to any member of the
Group or an Affiliate; or (vi) a company beneficially owned by any
director, employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor any member of the Group or
an Affiliate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

30. LB AERZR S @

(b) Share options (continued)

(b) &M )

Total number of securities issuable

The maximum number of shares which may be granted under
the share options scheme and any other schemes involving the
issue or grant of options or similar rights over shares or other
securities by the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of shares in issue as at the date of approval of the share options
scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the shareholders, no option may be granted
to any eligible participants which if exercised in full would result in
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options already granted or to be granted to such eligible
participant under the share options scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of such new
grant.

Period to take up share options and minimum period
to hold before exercise

There is no minimum period within which the shares option must
be taken up or for which a share option must be held before it
can be exercised.

Amount payable to take up share options and time to
accept offer

An offer for the granting of share options under the share options
scheme shall be accepted within 28 days from the offer date and
by way of payment of a consideration of HK$1.

Maximum period for exercising an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
share options scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board of Directors to each
participant, which period may commmence on the date on which
the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not more than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

30. U AERB 22X S @)

(b) Share options (continued) (b) &M #E )

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company and shall not be less than the highest
of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the relevant option, which must be a business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and

(i)  the nominal value of a share.

Life of the share options scheme

The share options scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of two years commencing on the date of adoption of the share
options scheme.

There were no Company’s share options held by directors and

employees as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

No options were granted under the share options scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staternents [continued]

AP BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)

H=E

31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated income statement of
HK$463,408 (2011: HK$456,787) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
There was no outstanding contribution as at 31 December 2012 and
2011 respectively.

31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS N.AEALTZRS

Extension of operating period of Xiamen Plaza

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by Yan Hei and Railway
Department on 1 October 1985 for co-operation on the construction
and operation of Xiamen Plaza and as supplemented and amended
subsequently on 18 December 1987 and 21 January 1992 (the “CJV
Agreement”), the operating period for Xiamen Plaza will end on 11
December 2015. On 6 June 2005 and 20 July 2005, the Company
announced that, Yan Hei entered into an extension agreement with
Railway Department, and Fujian Enterprises (Holdings) Company
Limited (“Fujian Enterprises”) (as a guarantor) on 9 May 2005 (“Extension
Agreement”), in which, amongst others, the operation period of Xiamen
Plaza will be extended for an additional 10 years up to 31 December
2025 and a change in the terms of the CJV Agreement in respect of
the annual amounts to be distributed by Yan Hei to Railway
Department. Pursuant to the terms of the Extension Agreement, Yan
Hei has agreed to pay annual distributions to Railway Department
during the operating period of Xiamen Plaza up to year 2025 as set out
below:

2005 to 2006
2007 to 2011
2012 to 2025

: US$70,000 per year
: US$100,000 per year
: US$200,000 per year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under the Extension Agreement which
fall due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive WEERFA
Over five years @A F

iERRE 2 EEH

BECEHEEBRR—NANREFTA—
AR LAEGERERLEZEE Z1ER
MEEEHOR Dz HE(HEER -
NtEFEF+FZA+ANBE—ANA=F—A
—t+—B®makEs]) (EnEl R
CREPEN _ZE—FHE+_-_F+—H
LiEFE-RZZEERFAASNBE_ZEE
FFEFELtAZ+H ARAAEMH CEH
HERBRER(EE)ARAR(TERE
B WEERANER-_ZEZEREFHAN
AelvErRmpE(ERBHED - BES
EhEZEERENR_ZT—AF+=-A
T—B&R - TERBAETA(EFR2HE)
BHNERBEGECECRKRERTF2
—E-_AF+_A=+—HB H¥EXE
BEFHCESRTHERZHEEZA
EmEGR BREBEERBEGK  C8
ERENRRABLEHEEE TS _AF
XHPIRTERED HBEENEHOT :

T RFE_TTF : BF70,000% T
—TELFE_FT——F : HF100,000%T
— T _—FF_T_FF : FF200,000%T

REEBREER  ARERBEERH
FLARBERENREBLT :

1,658,754
6,215,016
13,983,786

21,752,556
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (in HK Dollars)
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)

Extension of operating period of Xiamen Plaza (continued)

In addition, Fujian Enterprises irrevocably undertakes to Railway
Department that it will guarantee performance by Yan Hei of its
obligations under the CJV Agreement (as amended and extended).

Railway Department is the joint venture partner of Xiamen Plaza and is
beneficially owned by the State Railway Department. To the best
knowledge, information and belief of the directors of the Company,
having made all reasonable enquiries, Railway Department is
considered as an independent third party as despite being a joint
venture partner, it has no effective interest in the operations of Xiamen
Plaza.

Fujian Enterprises is a trading conglomerate incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, and under administration of Fujian Provincial State-
owned Asset Administration Commission of the PRC. Both Fujian
Enterprises and the Company are ultimately owned by Fujian provincial
government of the PRC. There are no common directors among Fujian
Enterprises and any member of the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors during the year was as follows:

EHE TAE A

Short-term employee benefits

32.

“HF+ A=+ —HBHFECUETIIR)

BEALTZRZ @

ERRE &S 8 m

Yok R E WA B AR R A
A ABEBRECEEGTERES
st (15 3T BB R) 2 B 4F -

HERARBZAEEFRKHE  HEfa
BREARBREBE -BEFNIEL —
DNABEEREAMA SERBRGE BE
HEBREELEZAENRMA HEER
RERBFIBERER RE/BYL
E=J5

FRERD-FZNBBEMKRILZLE
SEABZARAF P EBEEEE
FEAEERZECRER -ERKERK
RAYATEREEBRNTREHER - £
R &R AN B AR QR IR
HKRAE=-

TEEBEABZHE
AEEEEHHMT

2012

The remuneration of directors is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trend.
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33. PENDING LITIGATION 3B.RXTHZE T

At 31 December 2012, Xiamen Plaza is a defendant in a pending
litigation arising from the balance due and interest payable to Sunshine
Group of RMB268,716, equivalent to approximately HK$334,000. The
directors of the Company consider that Xiamen Plaza has a good
defence against such claims and no provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement dated 4 March 2008 (the
“Management Contract”) entered into by and between Xiamen Plaza,
an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and & P52 B
JEEIRAR AT (Xiamen Friendship International Co., Ltd) (“Friendship
International”), Friendship International was granted the operation right
of the hotel for a term of five years starting from 4 March 2008.

The Management Contract was terminated on 9 October 2012 due to
default in payment by Friendship International.

At 31 December 2012, Xiamen Plaza is a plaintiff in a pending litigation
arising from the liability from the breach of contract from Friendship
International of approximately RMB10,727,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$13,341,000. The directors of the Company consider
that Xiamen Plaza has a solid legal ground worked in his favour.
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Particulars of Property Interests

EL Tt

=E
=

Particulars of investment property interests held by the Group at 31 AREBR-_ZT——-—F+_HA=+—HFEA

December 2012 are as follows: 2 EREFBOT
Gross Group’s
Leasehold floor area Year of attributable
Investment properties expiry (square feet) completion interest
BEHEEE AEEH
REWHE HYERBEH (FFR) ¥ B D EihRE =
Hong Kong
B
Commercial
[El:R7E 3
Shop Nos.1, 3 and 4 2047 10,464 1981 50%

on Ground Floor together
with open yard adjoining
thereto and the whole of
First and Second Floors,
Sun Ming Court,

Nos. 84-90

Castle Peak Road,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon.
TLBERIKY

1L 3 84-905%

¥R A

R 3458

JE 4 R AR
ZRIFUR—1E
k=g 2E

Others
Hth

Motor cycle parking
space Nos. 54, 55,
56, 57 and 58 of

Yuet Ming Building,
No. 52 Yuet Wah Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon.
LB E

B E#E 525
AR

8854 - 55~ 56 * 57 &
5855 & B BRI




Particulars of Property Interests (continued]

5 (&)

) 2 4 2%

Expiry of Group’s
joint venture Site area Gross floor area attributable
Hotel property period (square feet) (square feet) interest
b 42 [ R BEEEE
B JE W) 3 A EmH (FHR) (FFR) rEE
PRC
B
Xiamen Plaza 2025 60,381 225,827 100%
908 Xiahe Road,
Kaiyuan District, Xiamen,
Fujian Province,
The People’s Republic of China.
& P95 B 38 AOB & —TRHE 60,381 225,827 100%

REARAME
BEA
EfmATE
JE K ¥ 908 5%
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